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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (appointed on 16 March 2009)

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony, SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
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Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul, MH, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
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Mr. Wong Hei-chiu
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SOLICITORS

Peter C. Wong, Chow & Chow
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Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
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Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Calyon

Standard Chartered Bank
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Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ
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WEBSITE

http://www.irasia.com/listco/hk/kingmaker/index.htm
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESERES

BUSINESS REVIEW

Although the global economic turmoil has inflicted uncertainty

and serious difficulties on every industry in the world, the Group
remains positive about the demand for its products, which are
daily necessities of life, and in particular for its premium casual
footwear as well as babies’ and children’s footwear.

In spite of an overall soft global retail environment, according
to the National Sporting Goods Association, the athletic and
sports footwear market in the United States of America (the “US”)
recorded only a 2% decline in 2008 year on year. Overall sales
of athletic and sports footwear in 2008 were not immune to the
weak economy, but certain categories did resist the downturn,
particularly jogging and walking shoes, with most demand
leaning toward the “brown shoe” casual category, in particular
comfortable and fashionable “athleisure” designs. With years of
dedicated effort in developing its fashion casual line, the Group
is thus well positioned to capitalize on the growing trend for more
casual dress codes.

To cope with the challenges created by the global economic
tsunami, the Group will continue to focus on maintaining its
leadership position in developing and manufacturing quality
footwear products. This will be achieved by continuously
enhancing its offerings to satisfy customers’ and brand-owners’
needs with innovative, cost-effective and high quality solutions.

“To cope with the challenges created by
the global economic tsunami, the Group
will continue to focus on maintaining its
leadership position in developing and
manufacturing quality footwear products.”
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESE RS

Extend sales and distribution network in China to cover major cities and special economic zones

At the same time, the Group will continue to evaluate and
optimize its cost structure in order to match development and
production excellence with cost competitiveness. These efforts
are being helped by certain favorable macro-environmental
developments in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”).

The positive effect of easing global interest rates, particularly
in the Renminbi (“RMB”), is expected to stimulate the world
economy in the year 2009. The RMB interest-rate reduction will
also dampen the appreciation trend in the RMB currency.

Also on a positive note, the Group benefited from the holdover of
the implementation of the minimum wage requirement for 2009
under the new PRC Labor Law. The raising of the export VAT
rebate from 11% to 13% during the year, then to the current
15%, was another positive factor for the Group.

The Group is well placed to benefit from these macro parameters
to further reduce the overall manufacturing and production costs
in our PRC factories.

Last but not least, the Group continues to pursue potential
strategic partnerships that will create added value and synergistic
benefits for the existing business.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESERES

Manufacturing Business

Despite setbacks in many major consumer markets inflicted
by the global economic crisis, the Group’s long-standing
development strategy and cost-control measures have helped
the Group to stabilize costs and sustain growth.

The Group’s strategy of anchoring in the premium arena and
establishing multi-location production bases now enables it to
maintain an excellent geographical reach and enjoy healthy,
diversified revenue contributions from the US and European
markets. The Group has also continued to augment its production
centers in Southeast Asia, including Vietnam and Cambodia, to
complement its production base in the PRC.

The world is not only in an economic downturn, but also
suffering a serious credit crisis. However, supported by a sound
financial position as a result of consistent and prudent cash-
flow management, the Group is much better placed than its
counterparts to survive the global economic downturn.

During the year under review, to sustain its cost competitiveness,
the Group made further upgrades to its “lean manufacturing
system”, under which the operation and production flow were
realigned to achieve higher efficiency, shorter production lead
times, and reduced materials and labor wastage. These, the
Directors believe, are the attributes necessary for sustaining
resilience during a slow market.
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Retail Business

Although the investment in this new business line has inevitably
affected the Group’s earnings during the year under review, the
Directors believe it is nevertheless a sound investment which
will generate new growth momentum to sustain returns to
shareholders in the long term. During the year under review, the
Group’s footwear retail business recorded an operating loss of
approximately HK$15.7 million.

There have been new positive developments in the retail
business unit which will be discussed further in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section.

FUTURE PLANS

In the coming year, the Group will focus on strengthening its
competitive position in order to take forward its business-
development plans to capture opportunities emerging as the
market returns to stability. Efforts will therefore be geared in the
following directions:

Continuing to move up the value chain

Looking ahead, the uncertain economic climate is likely to
continue to affect the demand for footwear globally. However,
the Directors are confident that the Group can maintain its
competitiveness by moving up the value chain while adopting
stringent cost-control measures.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESERES
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ESE RS

Strengthen our competitive edge

In 2009, the Group will focus on strengthening its competitive
edge and consolidating its leadership position in quality footwear
development and production. The Group will further expand its
product offerings to customers and brand owners, and continue
to enhance product quality and craftsmanship. At the same time,
the Group will bolster its prudent development strategy and
cost-control measures to stabilize costs while sustaining growth
momentum. In the light of the escalating manufacturing costs in
the southern part of the PRC, the Group is exploring more cost-
effective locations for the further diversification of its Mainland
production base by expanding to Jiangxi Province.

Further expanding our foothold

In addition to the “MOCCA” brand, the Group has also developed
its own house brand of babies’ products “Fiona’s Prince” in Hong
Kong. The management believes this new line will create new
synergies with the Group’s ongoing development plans.

Despite the global financial meltdown, the retail market in the
PRC is continuing to expand. The Directors believe that the PRC
footwear market will continue to experience robust growth in
the coming years on the back of a healthy and steadily growing
economy. In view of this, the Group will consider expanding into
the PRC market to capture opportunities in the mid- to upper-
market segment.
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New initiatives ahead

In addition to organic expansion, the Group is actively seeking
merger and acquisition opportunities. This will allow the Group
to further expand its production capacity quickly while enhancing
its product offerings and maintaining a high level of production
efficiency in the years ahead.

To further strengthen its foothold and positioning in the consumer
market in the Greater China region, in May 2009, the Group
acquired 100% of the issued share capital of FRD Worldwide
Limited, which is principally engaged in garment trading,
distribution and retailing business in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The purchase consideration of HK$1,000,000 for the acquisition
was in the form of cash.

In view of the current global economic environment, the Group
is focusing on maintaining strict operational and financial control
in order to successfully implement its business strategies. In this
regard, the Group’s cash position remains healthy.

Looking forward, although the unprecedented economic
environment may have adverse effects on the Group’s businesses
around the world, the Group’s established businesses are
expected to continue to perform satisfactorily, while the Group’s
retail businesses are expected to make further progress.
Consequently, the Directors have full confidence in the long-
term prospects for the Group.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Finally, on behalf of the Directors, | wish to express my sincere
appreciation to the management and staff members of the Group
for their loyal support and dedication, their professionalism,
enterprise and hard work. | would also like to thank our
shareholders, suppliers, bankers and customers for their
continued support.

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong, 13 July 2009
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B am M oA

FINANCIAL RESULTS

The Group has proved its resilience amid the current financial
crisis despite the fact that the shocks of the global downturn have
been the most severe one in recent times. During the year ended
31 March 2009, the Group succeeded in achieving approximately
11.08% year-on-year revenue growth to approximately HK$1,464
million (2008: approximately HK$1,318 million), on the back of an
approximately 2.91% improvement in the average selling price
(“ASP”) and an approximately 7.05% increase in output in terms
of product volume.

Under the unstable environment, revenue growth continued
to be underpinned by the Group’s market-driven product mix,
with the babies’ and children’s category becoming the major
income contributor, accounting for approximately 48.60% (2008:
approximately 40.72%) of total revenue. The geographical spread
remained relatively stable, with the US and Europe being the
Group’s two major market components.

Net profit for the year attributable to shareholders increased
approximately 5.55% to approximately HK$53 million (2008:
approximately HK$50 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R Mo

The Group’s results were positively impacted by the slight
decrease in material costs as a result of the decline in crude
oil prices. Improvement was also boosted by efficiency
enhancements from the implementation of the “lean manufacturing
system”, which also resulted in shortened production lead-times
and in turn reduced transportation expenses. Labor remains
an important cost factor in footwear production. The upward
trend in staff salaries and wages in the PRC, amid increasing
minimum wage requirements, has dragged down the Group’s

profitability.

The Group has moved forward with its plans to set up facilities
in Jiangxi Province, the PRC, and Cambodia in a bid to make
the necessary advance investments to enhance supply reliability
and economies of scale. Depreciation expenses have increased
commensurately, along with higher rental and advertising
expenses in line with the roll-out of the Group’s retail business.

Earning per share was approximately HK8.20 cents (2008:
approximately HK7.69 cents). The Group is delighted to share its
results with the shareholders who have demonstrated continuous
support for the Group. The payment of a final dividend of HK2.5
cents (2008: HK2.0 cents) was recommended for the year ended
31 March 2009. With the expectation of continuing strong cash
flow, the Group is dedicated to maintaining its current dividend

policy.

FUREE THREZRB R AME - YAKENE
HMERBRE B (BELEHE] FRAK
REAMEYRE  AIBEEENE] JHEE
EEH EMRIER - STIRANRERLE
MBEAR -AEPEKETIERETEH LEHAT
BEHFESNIEN LRBBEHEAKENART

ok
Be/J) °

AEBEE - FRREDBRITIEE RAERIBHRERR
RETE] - ABERAREIRE - MR inER
MR SEERRELEESR D - BAEERKTESE
AR - FrERXMEREN e MESEFHN

EEM -

BRAMB#K8.208 Il (ZFF/\F : £7.69%8
i) e REBRTENEE T AEB T ZBR
DEKRR - EEEZBRZEBE_TTNF=A
=t —BLEFEEZREEE258I (ZFZEN
F:208) BARERESHERY  #A
SEARFRAREBR

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ #3£ 5B R ‘A & | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009

13



14

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB am M AT

BUSINESS STRATEGIES

The Group’s resilient performance bears witness to a set of
concrete fundamentals and continuous efficiency improvements
backed up by an innovative research-and-development capability
and diversified multi-location production base. Momentum has
been maintained not only through capacity expansion, but also
through the constant pursuit of business diversification, the latest
move being downstream towards the retailing sector.

Business Diversification

Whilst maintaining a niche as a premium footwear manufacturer,
the Group, as a risk-averse company, is constantly seeking
diversification. Through diversification in product category and
production bases, the Group enjoys considerable flexibility in
adjusting its business-development roll-outs in response to
market trends and changes in the operating environment.

In the latest move, the Group is building on its capabilities and
industry position to take forward a new retail business plan, as
part of a strategy of pursuing long-term value creation.

The development of the new retail business platform in Hong
Kong and Macau aims to provide higher margins, and will
complement the Group’s legacy manufacturing business,
which will continue to contribute to the Group’s stable income
streams.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R Mo

Premium Capability

The Group’s capabilities and years of experience in delivering
tailor-made, competitive all-round services, supplemented by
a wide variety of product offerings, have helped it tap into
premium name-brand customers. Building on its solid partnership
relationships with premium brands, the Group has been able to
sustain the momentum in turnover growth. Despite weakened
retail demand in major markets, and with the RMB and other
export-related issues continuing to bite into orders and margins,
the Group has been able to leverage its core strengths to achieve
an improvement in the ASP. It is notable that the improvement
was achieved against an increase in the babies’ and children’s
category which has a comparatively lower ASP.

Product Mix

The Group continued to adjust its product mix in accordance
with the current changes in the market environment. Babies’ and
children’s footwear became the major category in the Group’s
output, accounting for approximately 48.60% (2008: 40.72%)
of revenue, whereas premium casual footwear and rugged
products contributed approximately 48.09% (2008: 54.46%)
and 2.38% (2008: 4.82%), respectively. The Group will continue
to enhance its competences in the premium casual segment in
order to tap into new brands from both existing and potential
new customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
B E R wm Mo

Market and Customer Portfolio

Revenue contributed by the US market increased slightly to
approximately 50.37% (2008: 49.59%) despite the continuing
appreciation of the RMB, whereas shipments to European
countries dropped to approximately 41.90% (2008: 44.78%) of
total revenue, due to the increase in the babies’ and children’s
category with its lower ASP.

Meanwhile, the Group continues to hold a prudently optimistic
outlook for its two major markets.

Amid the first signs of recovery, many economists in various
countries and organizations have lifted the growth outlook in
their latest projections, pointing to a range of signs indicating
that US economic activity has bottomed out. According to the
US Office for National Statistics, retail sales improved over the
first quarter of 2009. Non-specialized-store sales volumes rose
further in April, with clothing, footwear and textile retail sales
outperforming the rest of the retail sector.

As regard Europe, although the eurozone’s economy contracted
further in the first quarter of 2009, the Organisation for Economic
Cooperation and Development (“OECD”) recently raised its
forecast for its 30 member nations for the first time in two
years.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIRE Mo

With regard to business development, the Group is delighted
to report that its efforts in starting new relationships with new
brands were brought to fruition, with some new customers such
as Camper, K1X and Rockport bringing in their initial orders
during the reporting year. Major customers during the year
under review included Skechers, Clarks, Stride Rite, Elefanten
and G-Star, which in aggregate contributed to approximately
94.65% of revenue.

In spite of the unstable environment in the early part of 2009,
the Group successfully reduced its accounts receivable from
approximately 46 days to approximately 21 days, with inventory
turnover days improving from approximately 64 days to
approximately 49 days.

FEBRERA AEEMRARE B MRS
REVEBBEZSNERTEER  REEF
& A > Camper * KIXNMRockport&E & T # & F
ERAEEELEHTE ROBEFE 5%
E 2 £ % F B fESkechers * Clarks - Stride
Rite * Elefanten 2 G-Star * & 5 A& B Wz 4
94.65% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BB am M AT

OPERATIONS REVIEW

The Group continues to focus on producing superior-quality
premium-casual footwear with tailor-made one-stop services for
name-brand customers, with its production bases centralized in
Southeast Asia.

Manufacturing Business

The Group manages a strategic production platform with facilities
in the PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia to cater for the US and
European markets.

In the PRC, the Group operates a total of 26 production
lines in Zhuhai, Zhongshan and Jiangxi, turning out a total of
approximately 14 million pairs of shoes annually.

During the year, an easing RMB appreciation trend has relieved
some of the pressure from rising labor costs. This was helped
further by the postponement of the implementation of the
minimum wage requirement for 2009 under the new PRC Labor
Law. The raising of the export VAT rebate from 11% to 13%
during the year, then to the current 15% was another positive
factor for the Group.

Reflecting rising costs in China and restrained demand at home,
footwear imports from China into the US decreased by 7.2% to
1.9 billion pairs worth US$14.2 billion during 2008, according

E 3 C1)
AEEBREEPERERE B2 EEEMERET
BERECERE USREEFPRHES EE
Z— AR

AEEER—ERBELETS  EERBRE
B - R RORIEEE - I ASE B R EON TS R IR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

to an analysis by the American Apparel & Footwear Association.
However, China remained by far the largest footwear supplier
to the US with an 86.8% share of total US footwear imports
during 2008.

To serve this major market, the Group will continue to maintain
and strengthen its production base in the PRC. In order to
maintain its comparative advantage, the Group has moved
forward with its expansion plan to establish facilities further
inland, the new manufacturing facilities in Jiangxi Province
commenced operations in the first half of 2009. With the new
facilities in place, the Group’s annual capacity will increase by
approximately 7.89%, or approximately 1.6 million additional
pairs, by 2010.

The expansion of production facilities in Vietnam and Cambodia
also made excellent progress, with the new facilities being
designed to increase annual capacity by an additional 1 million
pairs approximately, or 16.67%, by 2010. During the reporting
year, total output was approximately 5 million pairs, mainly for
shipment to Europe.

In 2008, Vietnam exported leather footwear worth US$4.7 billion,
an increase of 18.5%. However, the Group will stay alert to the
European Union’s (“EU”) decision to remove Vietnamese footwear
from the Generalised System of Preferences as of 1 January
2009, a change which is expected to put greater pressure on
the country’s producers and exporters. Higher EU import duties
will be added to the existing anti-dumping duty of 10% on 33
categories of Viethnamese leather-upper footwear.

The Group will respond to these challenges by constantly
improving its offers to customers and brand owners, and make
up any lost ground through the provision of innovative, cost-
effective and high-quality solutions. The Group will also continue
to explore potential strategic partnerships that will add value and
bring synergies to the existing business.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B E S LT

Retailing Business

To meet with its long-term expansion strategy, the Group
acquired MOCCA in April 2008 to provide a new market-entry
avenue into the retail sector. Although this new business unit still
posted a loss of approximately HK$15.7 million for the reporting
year due to the opening of new outlets, the management believes
that this unit will become one of the most substantial income
streams for the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operation by internally and
generated cashflow and banking facilities provided by its
bankers.

Prudence financial management and selective investment criteria
have enabled the Group to maintain a strong financial position.
As at 31 March 2009, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were approximately HK$412 million (2008: approximately HK$281
million).

The Group is substantially debt-free. As at 31 March 2009,
the Group had banking facilities amounted to an aggregate
sum of approximately HK$256 million (2008: approximately
HK$267 million) with various banks. Out of trade and overdraft
banking facilities of approximately HK$226 million (2008:
approximately HK$187 million) in Hong Kong granted to the
Group, approximately HK$3 million (2008: approximately HK$1
million) had been utilized as at 31 March 2009.

For the year ended 31 March 2009, the current ratio was
approximately 1.98 (2008: approximately 1.82) based on current
assets of approximately HK$624 million and current liabilities
of approximately HK$316 million and the quick ratio was
approximately 1.63 (2008: approximately 1.43).

As at 31 March 2009, the Group did not have interest-bearing
bank borrowings (2008: approximately HK$1 million), resulting
nil% (2008: approximately 0.15%) of the shareholders equity.

The Group will continue to maintain conservative cash flow
management to sustain a strong cash position. Having considered
the major expansion plans of the Group, including Cambodia and

A
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

the PRC in the next two to three years, the Directors are of the
opinion that the Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current
and future working capital requirements on its operations and
expansion.

Most of the Group’s assets and liabilities, revenue and expenditure
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, the RMB and the US
dollars (“USD”). It is the Group’s policy to adopt a conservative
approach on foreign exchange exposure management.

However, the Group will continue to monitor its foreign exchange
exposure and market conditions to determine if any hedging is
required. The Group generally finances its operation with internal
resources and bank facilities provided by banks in Hong Kong.
Interest rates of borrowings are fixed by reference to the USD
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate.

The Group’s treasury policies are designed to mitigate the impact
of fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates arising from
the Group’s global operations and to minimize the Group’s
financial risks. As a measure of additional prudence, the Group
cautiously uses derivatives, principally forward foreign exchange
contracts as appropriate for risk management purposes only, for
hedging transactions and for managing the Group’s receivables
and payables.

The fair value of the Group’s outstanding derivative instruments
as at 31 March 2009 represented the net amount the Group
would receive/pay if these contracts were closed out at 31 March
2009. The fair value of these outstanding derivatives has been
recognized as assets or liabilities.

The exposure to foreign currency of the Group mainly arose from
the net cash flow and the net working capital translation of its
PRC subsidiaries. The management of the Group will actively
hedge the foreign currency exposures through natural hedges,
forward contracts and options, if consider necessary. The
management of currency risk is centralised in the headquarter
of the Group in Hong Kong.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Shareholders’ equity increased to approximately HK$768 million
as at 31 March 2009 (2008: approximately HK$738 million). As
at 31 March 2009, the Group did not have interest-bearing bank
borrowings (2008: approximately HK$1 million), resulting nil%
(2008: approximately 0.15%) of the shareholders equity.

The Group, including its subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Taiwan, the
PRC, Vietnam and Cambodia employed approximately 14,000
employees as at 31 March 2009. The Group’s remuneration
policies are primarily based on prevailing market salary levels
and the performance of the respective companies and individuals
concerned. Share options may also be granted in accordance to
the terms of the Group’s approved share option scheme.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

With a portfolio of businesses that span across the globe, the
Group work and plan diligently to build on our success to achieve
long-term growth. Businesses are encouraged to innovate and
individuals are given creative platforms to explore. At the same
time, each business is managed prudently to ensure steady
growth through sustainable business models.

Each of the Group’s businesses work hard to build a strong
foundation in its local market through delivering quality products
and services, and through contribution to charitable activities and
sponsorship initiatives to connect with the local communities.

The Directors believe that corporate social responsibility is an
integral part of our corporate culture and a key to long-term
success. Our management philosophy is to be, caring and
respectful, creating an harmonious atmosphere, which we apply
not only to our business practices, but also our interactions with
the community. By organising voluntary services, donations and
sponsorships, we hope to fulfill our social responsibilities and
offer assistance to those in need.

Giving back to the community is an important element to being
a responsible corporation. The Group serves local communities
through volunteerism, charitable activities and sponsorship
initiatives that span the spectrum to improve the overall standard
of living for those around us.

The Directors believe that as a responsible international company,
we should contribute to those less fortunate in communities
around us. To this end, the Group contributed to many charities
including the World Vision Charity in both Hualian and llan
townships in Taiwan in early 2009. Shoes were given to both
individual needy families and established orphanages, with
an emphasis on providing suitable footwear for infants and
children.

Volunteerism is encouraged across our Group and our employees
have enthusiastically served the communities with their time,
talents, and heart.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Since 2007, the Group has supported sustainable social and
economic development of the country through the provision of
opportunity to Cambodia’s people. Sensitive to the particular
needs of Cambodian society, in which a disproportionate segment
of the population deals with the disability of amputeeism, the
Group has made and continues to make a commitment, through
cooperation with the Cambodian National Volleyball League
(Disabled) and the Ministry of Social Affairs, Labor and Youth
Rehabilitation, to provide an equal opportunity workplace and
environment that accomodates integration of persons with a
disability. Inclusion of disabled workers is a keynote feature of
the unique Cambodian factory.

The year 2008 was marked by several major natural disasters
around the world. Our Group quickly responded to the
catastrophes. As time is critical in such circumstances, the
Group’s fast response with financial support helped meet the
urgent needs of the victims.

In May, one of the deadliest earthquakes of all time hit the
Sichuan province in Mainland China. The earthquake, measuring
8 on the Richter scale, killed over 60,000 people and left
hundreds of thousands injured and millions homeless.

The Group donated over RMB200,000 to aid victims of the
Sichuan earthquake and help with the rebuilding process. Among
the many programmes supported are financial aid for students
affected by the quake.

In addition to the Group’s contribution, a voluntary, earthquake
emergency contribution fund was set up to allow individuals
to contribute. This has been widely supported throughout the
Group’s factories in both Zhuhai and Zhongshan indicating a
show of support for the people in Sichuan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure
to protect the interests of the shareholders of the Company. The
board of the Directors (“the Board”) is committed to ensure the
self-regulatory practices exist to protect the interests of the
shareholders. These include a Board of high caliber members,
Board Committees and effective internal audit and good systems
of internal controls. The Company regularly reviews the corporate
governance procedures and developments of the Company. The
Company applied the principles and complied with all the code
provisions as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the period
under review, except that:

Under the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer (“CEQ”) of the Company
should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the chairman
and CEO of the Company should be clearly established and set
out in writing. The roles of the chairman and the CEO of the
Company are not separated and are performed by the same
individual, Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey. The Directors will meet
regularly to consider major matters affecting the operations of
the Company. The Directors consider that this structure will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Directors
and the management of Company and believe that this structure
will enable the Group to make and implement decisions promptly
and efficiently.

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms without deviation from
the required standard of dealings as set out in the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of listed issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Directors
have complied with such code of conduct and the required
standard of dealings in the Model Code and its code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by the Directors throughout the
year ended 31 March 2009.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The duty of the Board is to manage the Group in a responsible
and effective manner and every Director has to carry out his/her
duty in good faith and achieve the standard of any prevailing
applicable laws and regulations and act in the best interests of
the Company and its shareholders. During the year under review,
the members of the Board included:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)

Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (appointed on 16 March 2009)

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
(re-designated as non-executive director on 16 March 2009)

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Directors’ biographies and the relationship among the
Board members, if any, are set out in “Directors and Senior
Management Profiles” of this annual report. Save as disclosed
in the “Directors and Senior Management Profiles”, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship(s)
among the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board held 6 Board meetings during the year. Details of the
attendance of the meetings of the Board are as follows:

Name of Directors

EEfA

Executive Directors #{TEE

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey PR & 5 4
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen & &% &2+
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 1 R 46 % &

Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby 2=l 4t 4=

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu =8B 4

Non-executive Directors k#HTEE
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBs, J.p. EIJKZ5T A » REH2E - ATt
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel FR%& X 5 &

Independent non-executive Directors B IEHITESE
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny &5t IF %t 4

Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.p. BRI o4+ #amE A Tm+
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven 1L %4

Apart from the above regular Board meetings of the year, the
Board will meet on other occasions when a Board level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors receive details of
agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each Board meeting. The Board has reserved for its
decision or consideration matters covering corporate strategy,
annual and interim results, Directors’ appointment, succession
planning, risk management, major acquisitions, disposals and
capital transactions, and other significant operational and financial
matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for Board approval before public
reporting, execution of business strategies and initiatives adopted
by the Board, implementation of adequate systems of internal
controls and risk management procedures, and compliance with
relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

The Board is responsible for determining the corporate strategic
development and ensuring the business operations are properly
monitored. The Board reserves the right to decide all policy
matters and material transactions of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board delegates the day-to-day operations to general
managers and department heads who are responsible for
different business functional units of the operations of the
Group.

Besides, to assist the Board in discharge of its duty, the Board
established the audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee and their scope of duties and terms of
reference were discussed and approved in the Board meetings.

All the non-executive Directors were appointed for a specific term
of three years that are subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the Company’s annual general meeting in accordance
with the bye-laws of the Company.

The Board has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors a written annual confirmation of their
independence and satisfied that their independence up to the
date of this report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

Under the code provision B.1.1 of the CG Code, the Company
should establish a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with its authority and duties.

The principal role and function of the Remuneration Committee
include the determination of the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management
of the Company, including benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, such as any compensation payable
for loss or termination of their office or appointment, and make
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors.

During the year, members of the Remuneration Committee
included:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Chairman)
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny

Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Remuneration Committee held a meeting on 13 March
2009 to discuss remuneration related matters. All members
of the Remuneration Committee attended the meeting. The
Remuneration Committee has considered and reviewed the
existing terms of employment contracts of the executive Directors
and appointment letters of the non-executive Directors and
the independent non-executive Directors with reference to
the factors including salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of employment contracts of the
executive Directors and appointment letters of the non-executive
Directors and the independent non-executive Directors are fair
and reasonable. Details of the emolument policy of the Directors
are set out on page 47 of this report.

The principal role and function of the Nomination Committee
include to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board on a regular basis and to make recommendations to the
Board regarding any proposed changes. The Board considers
the past performance and qualification of the candidates for
Directors, general market conditions and the Company’s bye-
laws in selecting and recommending candidates for directorship
during the year under review.

The Nomination Committee held a meeting on 13 March 2009.
The Nomination Committee members namely, Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny and Mr. Chan Mo-
po, Paul, Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony (Chairman) and Mr. Yung
Tse-kwong, Steven. All members of the Nomination Committee
attended the meeting.

During the Nomination Committee meeting, the Nomination
Committee considered and resolved that all the existing Directors
shall be recommended to be retained by the Company. Further,
in accordance with the Company’s bye-laws and as resolved by
the Nomination Committee, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Tam
King-ching, Kenny, Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Mr. Wong
Hei-chiu will retire, and being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

As required by Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules, the Company has
established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference, which deal clearly with its authority
and duties. Its principal duties are to review and supervise
the Group’s financial reporting process and internal control
systems.

During the year until the date of this report, members of the Audit
Committee included:

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny (Chairman)
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony SBS, J.P.
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

The Audit Committee held 3 meetings during the year and all the
committee members were present in these meetings.

The Group’s audited consolidated results for the year ended
31 March 2009 have been reviewed by the Audit Committee,
which was of the opinion that the preparation of such results
complied with the applicable accounting standards, the Listing
Rules and legal requirements, and that adequate disclosures
have been made.

The Audit Committee considered that the existing proposed
terms in relation to the appointment of the Group’s external
auditors are fair and reasonable.

The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the
appointment of the external auditors and reviewing any non-audit
functions performed by the external auditors, including whether
such non-audit functions could lead to any potential material
adverse effect on the Group. During the year under review,
the fees payable to Ernst & Young, the Company’s external
auditors, for audit services and non-audit service totalling of
HK$1,280,000 and HK$602,000 respectively.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors’ responsibilities for the financial statements and the
responsibilities of the independent auditors to the shareholders
of the Company are set out on page 52 to 53 of this report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
Group’s system of internal control to ensure the effective and
adequate internal control system. The Board convened meetings
regularly to discuss financial, operational and compliance controls
risk management functions.

As part of the process of the annual review, the Board has
performed evaluation of the Group’s accounting and financial
reporting function to ensure that there is adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff of the function, and their
training programmes and budget.

The internal audit function monitors compliance with policies and
standards and the effectiveness of internal control structures
across the whole Group. Findings regarding internal control
matters are reported to the Audit Committee. The external
auditors have access to the full set of internal audit reports.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor
relations and communications with its investors. An intensive
communications channel has been maintained with the media,
analysts and fund managers through one-on-one meeting,
road shows and conferences. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts
to keep them abreast of the Company’s development.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company sets high priority in communicating with
shareholders and investors. Regular meetings with institutional
shareholders and general presentation of financial results are
made when financial results are announced. The Company also
provides extensive information in its annual report, interim report
and press announcement.

\//\—/-r\

PEEIAWRE

EERGBARMBHRRZEE

BEENTBERER 2B F MBS R E A QD 7R
RZEASRAREFS2E53H o

B EE 4 % L B IR

EECHARE 2 ARREIEHIE 2 B BCE TR
i NERASEENETZAERRLESRE
EXerTHEReRNTRPE - K2 MEIE

NL =
PEE e B IR Ak AL o

ERFREREREFNHD  ESECBITHEAN
SENE RPBRENINGE - UERE RN
BR - BB RER  BERETHEXER K
REERIA I ETBE

NEEZINEERETHRRRERNER - LR
RERERENSABEERBONA - ERE
EeeREREHAANMEESTENER  INEX

BN NS E BN R E R RS -
REERER
ARRBBEREMNEAREEFRIAEREE
B e AnmBBEGR DB RESLE
RITER G  BRKERNTE - KEMERE
‘}iZLaﬂﬁ%}E YRERREEERRBERES

DMERFTEHSE -
YN ﬂ?é)z' ZERHHE

femEEEFREHAREA

B R 2 A
ARRRBIERRBRRREE 2B © A
BEER  ADAGERBERRBTOG @

MBREEME - NARARNEREFR - FHIH
ERBENHTREREES -

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ #3£ 5B R A & | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009

31



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Board endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with
shareholders. All directors are encouraged to attend the general
meetings to have personal communication with shareholders.
In annual general meeting, Chairman of the Board and the
chairman of each committee are required to attend and answer
questions from shareholders in respect of the matters that they
are responsible and accountable for. The external auditor is also
required to be present to assist the Directors in addressing any
relevant queries by shareholders.

The Company’s annual general meeting (“AGM”) and special
general meeting (“SGM”) provide good opportunities for
shareholders to air their views and ask Directors and management
questions regarding the Company. All shareholders of the
Company receive the annual report, circulars and notices of AGM
and SGM and other corporate communications. The notices are
also published in newspapers. Separate resolutions are required
at general meetings on each distinct issue. Each shareholder is
permitted to appoint a proxy to attend and vote in his stead.

Pursuant to the bye-laws of the Company, the Chairman shall
demand a poll in the Company’s general meetings whenever
voting by poll is required under the Listing Rules. The Company’s
bye-laws has set out the procedures, requirements and
circumstances where voting by poll is required, and in corporate
communications to shareholders for matters where shareholders’
voting are required, the procedures for and shareholders’
right to demand a poll shall be specified. Such procedure and
shareholders’ right would be reiterated and explained by the
Chairman at the commencement of the general meeting of
shareholders.

To enhance the standards of employees, the Company has
set out standards of professional and ethical conduct for all
employees of the Group. The employees at all levels are expected
to conduct themselves in an honest, diligent and responsible
manner.

The Company will continue it enduing effort in reviewing the
corporate governance practices from time to time and will try the
best in maintaining, strengthening and improving the standard
and quality of the Company’s corporate governance to meet
with the continuous changing environment and for the benefit
of the shareholders.
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Name

##&

Chen Ming-hsiung,
Mickey
PR B 1

Huang Hsiu-duan,
Helen

= 75 Ui

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Age
Fie

56

52

Position held

B

Chairman and
managing director
TREREFRLE

Executive director

WITES

Number of
years of
service

EREFR

28

28

Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Chen is a co-founder of the Group. Mr.
Chen has more than 31 years’ experience in
the footwear industry. He is responsible for
formulating the overall business strategy and
plans of the Group. He also oversees the
functions of marketing and product design
and development. He is the husband of
Madam Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen.

BREERTEBEIMAZ — EBBIIFR
EXKR BRAEHNITAEE ZEBEBR
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B RuAERERHET T 2K -

Madam Huang is the wife of Mr. Chen Ming-
hsiung, Mickey and is a co-founder of the
Group. She is responsible for the Group’s
administration and has more than 32 years’
experience in the footwear industry.
BRTRBREBEEEZRA - TRKNEE R
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Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ #3£ 5B R A & | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name Age
" FiR
Lee Kung, Bobby 54
i

Kimmel, Phillip Brian 57
ERA
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Position held

Bz

Executive director

HITES

Executive director

HITES

Number of
years of
service

EREFR

28

15

Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Lee is a co-founder of the Group
and is responsible for the Group’s overall
production in Vietnam. He is also responsible
for formulating and controlling the Group’s
quality control policy and procedures. Mr.
Lee has more than 29 years’ experience in
the footwear industry.
FEERAEERIBRAZ — BEXREEEY
MZERBAEERHE  TRESEMESIAREE
mBEHBRRIEF - FREEFE20FHE
EFC8 i

Mr. Kimmel is responsible for the Group’s
marketing and customer relations. He holds
a Bachelor’'s degree from the University of
Southern California. He also holds a Master’s
degree in China Regional Studies from
the University of Washington. Mr. Kimmel
has more than 33 years’ experience in
the footwear industry in Taiwan, the USA,
Canada and the PRC.
FAEFEREE T EHEREFBRSE
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Name

##&

Wong Hei-chiu

BB

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Age
Fie

42

Number of

years of

Position held service
B EHEH
Executive director 1

HITES

Business experience

AR

Mr. Wong is also the chief financial officer
of the Group and was appointed as an
executive director and company secretary
of the Company on 16 March 2009. Mr.
Wong holds a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Lingnan University,
Hong Kong. He is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising), a fellow member
of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants in the United Kingdom, an
associate member of The Institute of
Chartered Accountants in England and Wales
and an associate member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr.
Wong has over 18 years of corporate finance
and financial management experience in
Hong Kong and the PRC. Prior to joining
the Group in 2008, Mr. Wong has worked as
the group financial controller and company
secretary in a Hong Kong listed electronics
manufacturing company for over 8 vyears;
and as the finance director and company
secretary in another Hong Kong listed
wholesale and distribution company for over
4 years.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

##&

Chow Wing-kin,
Anthony, SBS, J.P.
A

BEFES - KA FMt
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Age
T

59

Number of

years of

Position held service
B EHEH
Non-executive director 15

FHITES

Business experience

AR

Mr. Chow serves as the Chairman of the
Nomination Committee, a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.
ArRERRAFAREEZEESGIFEREREZES
RHEMEEG2HKE -

Mr. Chow is a solicitor admitted to practise in
Hong Kong and England and Wales. He has
been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong for
over 28 years and is currently a partner in the
law firm Peter C Wong, Chow & Chow. Mr.
Chow is a China-Appointed Attesting Officer
and member of the Guangzhou Arbitration
Commission. He is also the Chairman of the
Process Review Panel for the Securities and
Futures Commission. His principal areas of
practice include corporate and commercial,
property law, probate and civil litigation. He is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director
of Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited, Ping
An Insurance (Group) Company of China,
Limited and The Link Real Estate Investment
Trust, which are listed in Hong Kong and
an Independent Non-Executive Director of
Evergro Properties Limited, which is listed in
Singapore. He is the former President of the
Law Society of Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

##&

Chan Ho-man, Daniel

PR

Age
Fie

54

Number of

years of

Position held service
B EHEH
Vice chairman and 13

non-executive director

BIEFERIFATES

Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Chan has ceased to be an executive
Director of the Company and has been re-
designated as a non-executive Director and
the vice-chairman of the Company on 16
March 2009. Mr. Chan is responsible for
advising the management on the corporate
strategy and policy development.
REETNBRARRARIZHITES  WERZZE
ENF=ZATANBRERRREZEMITES
%ﬁifoﬁiiﬁa%ﬁ%%W&ﬁ%%E
mERERES

Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and an associate member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Chan has more than 30
years’ accounting and finance experience in
Hong Kong.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

##&

Tam King-ching,
Kenny
A

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 3 5B 5 R A &) | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009

Age
T

60

Number of

years of

Position held service

B fu ERF &

Independent 15
non-executive director

BUIFATES

Business experience

AR

Mr. Tam serves as the Chairman of the
Audit Committee, a member of each of the
Nomination Committee and Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He is a
practising Certified Public Accountant in
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Tam is serving as a member of the Ethics
Committee and Practice Review Committee
in the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is a Past President
of The Society of Chinese Accountants
and Auditors. Mr. Tam also serves as an
independent non-executive director of four
other listed companies on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”), namely,
Shougang Concord Grand (Group) Limited,
CCT Telecom Holdings Limited, Starlite
Holdings Limited and Van Shung Chong
Holdings Limited, and a listed company on
the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock
Exchange, namely, North Asia Strategic
Holdings Limited. He was an independent
non-executive director of Yun Sky Chemical
(International) Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company, during the period from
August 2005 to September 2008.
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Name

##&

Chan Mo-po, Paul,
MH, J.P.
R 5%

KREBE  KFHL

DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Age
Fie

54

Number of

years of

Position held service

B fu ERF &

Independent B
non-executive director

BYFFATES

Business experience

AR

Mr. Chan serves as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
He is the chairman of PCP CPA Limited. He
is also an independent non-executive director
of three companies publicly listed in Hong
Kong, namely, The Wharf (Holdings) Limited,
Hong Kong Economic Times Holdings
Limited and China Communications Services
Corporation Limited. He has been appointed
the chairman of the Legal Aid Services
Council since September 2006.
BREERBARNRERZEZES  REBEZEGKH
MEEGKE - thREEEXG A EKFA
ERDNBNERE  MAE-HREBSARLETH
NE > BINEREEBRAR HEKLBEAR
EEBR A RA KA BERERBR DGR A A
BBV IEMITES - thE _ T FNALE
ZEREEEDRBERERE

Mr. Chan is a graduate of The Chinese
University of Hong Kong where he obtained
both his bachelor’s and master’s degrees in
Business Administration.
REALEENEBPNAR  EZRIRELHE
ERBTRELTS -

Mr. Chan has over 30 years’ experience
in accounting and finance field and is a
former president of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. He is also
a former chairman of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants — Hong
Kong. In 2007, he was appointed a Justice
of the Peace. In 2008, he was appointed a
member of Shanghai City’s Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference. Mr.
Chan was elected in September 2008 as a
member of Legislative Council representing
the Accountancy Functional Constituency.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

##&

Yung Tse-kwong,
Steven
HFT
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Age
T

59

Number of

years of

Position held service
B ERF &
Independent 4

non-executive director

BYFFATES

Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Yung serves as a member of the Audit
Committee, Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Yung is the ex-Chairman of Clear Media
Limited which is listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange. During his 28 years
of media, advertising, consumer marketing,
manufacturing and retailing career, he also
held senior management positions with, and
brought extensive management experience
from multinational companies including the
Coca-Cola Company in the USA and Asia
Pacific. Mr. Yung served on the boards of
various community, corporate and charitable
organizations.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Name

##&

Hong Kong Office:
BEEPEE

Lai Chi-hang, David

REE

Zhongshan factory
RILRE

Huang Pen-yuan,
David
ERAV/

Liu San-teng, Gerry
21l B

Age
Fie

56

47

Position held

B

Group
financial controller
EE TS

Assistant General
Manager
Bl asIE

Senior Manager
T IR

Number of
years of
service

EREFR

16

18

17

Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Lai is responsible for the Group’s
accounting and financial management.
He has 20 years’ experience in the fields
of auditing, accounting and financial
management.
RELABAEE 2 RUBER - AF20
FRY - S B ERLR -

Mr. David Huang has been with the Group
for 19 years. He has more than 25 years’
experience in the footwear industry. He is
presently responsible for a key account of
the Group and is also running the Zhongshan
factory business.
BRREEMAREEEF19F - REERE
XEBFLEELR BELEARAEEIER
PR EBAFEPILREE -

Mr. Gerry Liu has been with the Group for 17
years. He was an essential component in the
building design and execution of the Group’s
Vietnam factory complex. Currently, he is in
charge of Zhongshan factory production.
BILUBAEENMAREERBI7HE - QLB ER
SEMERER - BRIZIEEAEEEFRIL
R EE -
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILES

Number of
years of
Name Age Position held service

##& FiR Bz EREFR

Zhuhai and jiangxi
factory

KENOIEME

Huang Chun-hua, 49 Senior Manager 26
Charles HMITIHIE
BEE

Vietnham and
Cambodia factory

HERREERE
Chen Hsien-yu, 50 Senior Manager 15

Simon BITIHIE
PREBA

Retail
=28

Chen Hong-jun, Fiona 26 Managing Director 2
BRUTE ERpEKE
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Business experience

[GREEL

Mr. Charles Huang has been with the
Group since 1983, has more than 27 years’
experience in the footwear industry. He is
currently in charge of the factory operations
in Zhuhai and Jiangxi.
BEEEER-NN=ZFMALREER - ERE
FHBR2TFZRR  HELBMBETEIK
B RIIFRR 2 &8 o

Mr. Simon Chen has been with the Group
for 15 years. He has more than 22 years’
experiences in the footwear industry.
Currently, Mr. Chen is in charge of customer
relations and factory operations in Vietham
and Cambodia.
PREMSCENMAREBRDSF - REEREFE
oL EKE - RAEBE MR RRIFER
FEEPZEBREE -

Ms. Fiona Chen graduated from National
Taiwan University with a BA degree, where
she majored in International Business. After
graduation, she went to the United Kingdom
and studied footwear design at De Montfort
University. Ms. Chen is in charge of the
Group’s footwear retailing business.
MNMEBEXRRBEIRERNS FAXEL
B TEEKREHEK- %1% REBEDe
Montfort University B & 58851 - RBE A
SBrERTEXER -



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company present their report and the
audited financial statements of the Company and of the Group
for the year ended 31 March 2009.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 17 to the financial statements. During the year, the
Group commenced the footwear retailing business after the
acquisition of Star (1) Limited, Star (2) Limited, Star (3) Limited
and Viewexcel Limited (collectively known as “MOCCA”). Other
than the above, there were no significant changes in the nature
of the principal activities of the Group during the year.

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2009 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 54 to 136.

An interim dividend of HK1.5 cents per ordinary share was paid
on 29 January 2009. The Directors recommended the payment
of a final dividend of HK2.5 cents per ordinary share in respect
of the year to shareholders on the register of members on 28
August 2009. This recommendation has been incorporated in the
financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet. Subject to the passing of
the relevant resolution at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company, such dividend will be payable on or around 6
October 2009, in cash in Hong Kong dollars.

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
22 August 2009 to 28 August 2009, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfers of shares shall be effected. To
qualify for the final dividend and for attending and voting at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, all share
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must
be lodged with the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. on 21
August 2009.

K’AET%%E%&H EEFEWRER K’Aﬁjﬁﬁi
BERHE—_ZTAF=A=+—HL
Eﬁ‘%i&i’@

RARZEBEBRIREER - EEZWE QA
LEZEBHBERTBEHRERMEI7 - FA -
AEFBRKWBEENERAR - EE2QARA
A - BEQERAFARKBRERAR (5ER
[MOCCA]) &McERTE X « R L&
REEF2EB o MEERFEWEERE

AEEREE - STNAF=A=1T—"HILFEZ
A R AR R EARE BN Z B 2 M REAR R SR B
SRR ES4E 1368 °

AEBER _ZTZEAF A+ NABIRNPHK
BEREERISEN EFEZREAFERE
BREBREER25BINTR_ZEZAFNAZT
NBZFRREAMZ R - BRARZEDRIBR
R BESBETREBENOEREERERT

Bk - MR ARRIRERRBFAE LBBBEBR
BERE ABRRESENR _ZTNAF T A/NBEEA
BABTIRESIRE ©

RARKRZEZENFNAZF+ZHEZZTTN
FNAZ+NB (BEEEMA) §ERHERHS
BEERL  ELHHEASTIHERODBRE - BFE
BERWBERAREREFEARRREERRBEER
FINRE LRE - AIBERHBPRIEERBBKR
EWMERE 7JL¢J\H BT FEE=+
DRRERARBZBEERN B F LR EEETRE
KAERAR it REBEFE2ERNER28HRE
EEFE A 002618 o
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the
respective published audited financial statements, is set out
below. This summary does not form part of the audited financial
statements.

AEERNBELBYBFEFREZXEREERAR
ZHE (BExEEhEe Mz EERMHRK)
FIMT - ARBVIEEZT BRI Z — 8

5 -

Year ended 31 March &8Z=B=1+—BLEE

2009
HK$’000
FERT
REVENUE W 1,463,824
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B&%i A 32 F 59,899
Tax Fi18 (6,702)
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY KRR AR FE ABLEFR 53,197
2009
HK$’000
FHT
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
W BERRE 370,526
PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS
AL EERE 79,229
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES &2& ¥ 3,712
DEPOSITS PAID Eft#&& 4,444
INVESTMENTS IN CLUB MEMBERSHIPS
SFEERE 1,003
AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS
HHEERE 880
CURRENT ASSETS #ig& & 623,947
TOTAL ASSETS & E 1,083,741
CURRENT LIABILITIES B & & 315,602
TOTAL LIABILITIES # & & 315,602
768,139

2008 2007 2006 2005

HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TET TAT TET TET

1,317,857 1,156,666 1,278,488 1,432,388

65,121 39,785 70,360 92,796
(14,723) (5,994) (10,225) (4,896)
50,398 33,791 60,135 87,900

As at 31 March R=A=+—H

2008 2007 2006 2005

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

369,094 342,758 367,716 378,793

76,379 74,208 76,064 82,752
4,310 3,060 2,973 =
2,367 = = =
1,017 1,030 1,045 1,060
1,886 1,693 1,369 970

626,241 525,614 498,120 456,845

1,081,294 948,363 947,287 920,420

343,154 277,136 261,154 239,137

343,154 277,136 261,154 239,137

738,140 671,227 686,133 681,283
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group during the year are set out in
notes 14 and 16 to the financial statements, respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and share
options during the year, together with the reasons therefor,
are set out in notes 25 and 26 to the financial statements,
respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the bye-laws
of the Company or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased its 12,556,000 shares
on the Stock Exchange and 10,844,000 shares and 1,712,000
shares were cancelled by the Company during the year and

%ﬁ,

ME - BERKERRENSE

AEEME BERRBLRENERRNFEZ
BEFE D SN EHRKRM T 14516

RAK 8 R e

FA - ARBBRANREREZES 2FBENREHD
RIER SRR M 255226 -

BrEERE

ARBZARIAANHERE-NAN—FRBEH
ERMREBLEIEEE AT  MARBBRZLA
AR A BEREITHA -

BE BEHEXRAT 2 LHESF

FR - ANRAFPERFTEEE12,556,0000% %15 -
#10,844,0000% K 1,712,0000% I 17 B B & 2 &)
DRIRFEARFLEBEEE EE2MRE  B’H

subsequent to year end, respectively. The Directors considered BRIHRBRARNAZZEZIREAF o D E
that the share repurchases are beneficial to the shareholders EFEMAT :
of the Company who retain their investments in the Company.
Details of the share repurchase are set out below.
Aggregated
consideration
Number of (excluding
shares Highest price Lowest price  transaction cost)
repurchased per share per share REAE
Month/Year & /A BE 2z RABE BRESE BRERE (FEEXZHEF)
HKS$ %7t HKS %7t HK$000 T 7T
April 2008 ZZZ \EM A 1,374,000 0.99 0.90 1,334
May 2008 —EE\FH A 626,000 0.97 0.94 595
June 2008 ZZEZEN\F XA 500,000 1.01 0.96 490
September 2008 ZEZEN\FNA 1,318,000 0.82 0.77 1,029
October 2008 =% ”)\¢+ﬁ 1,358,000 0.78 0.59 974
November 2008 —EZ \F+— 200,000 0.70 0.65 133
January 2009 —Z % ﬁﬁ A 1,982,000 0.54 0.48 996
February 2009 —ETNFHA 3,588,000 0.60 0.52 1,994
March 2009 ZZZNF= A 1,610,000 0.63 0.58 961
Total 85t 12,556,000 8,506
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Further details of these transactions are set out in note 25 to the
financial statements.

Except as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s
listed securities during the year.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 27(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

At 31 March 2009, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda, amounted to HK$95,925,000, of which
HK$15,974,000 has been proposed as a final dividend for the
year. In addition, the Company’s share premium account, in the
amount of HK$62,933,000, may be distributed in the form of
fully paid bonus shares.

In the year under review, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers accounted for approximately 94.65% of the total sales
for the year and sales to the largest customer included therein
amounted to 46.62%. The Group’s purchases from the five
largest suppliers accounted for less than approximately 24.11%
of the Group’s purchases for the year.

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which, to the best knowledge of
the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and suppliers.

BRAZE
25 °

R 52— B RO R R MY R

B EXPTREESN - AR SEEMMERRF
NEEE  BOXKWEARRZEMN LHE

FA- AR T&ZIKE@Z%%‘X
BTSRRI 27 (o) Rbr & W 2

BRBEBEEE-NN—FRRVEFE  RZZZN
F=A=1+—8 ARRAIHIEKZHHREL
95,925,000/ 7T © H #15,974,000% 7T & F A
BORRERRE o WO RAR 2D EERA
62,933,000/ 7T * AJLABR AR 2 A DIk ©

REBFE  AEEHAATFPZHERELAR
BAFEEHEFEL4.65% @ MHPREERY
RATP ZHERANEL46.62% - AEB R A
AEEBIRBRERAEEAFERBRE L
24.11% »

B HEMBMEBAXRESMAAEE LR
EEITRAE% A L2 ERIARRBREEEAR A
SEBAREFRHER 2 TR BERER -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year were:

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu (appointed on 16 March 2009)

Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBs, J.P.
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
(re-designated as non-executive director on 16 March 2009)

Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.P.
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven

In accordance with articles 86(2) and 87 of the Company’s
bye-laws, Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian, Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny,
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven and Mr. Wong Hei-chiu will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company’s board of Directors with reference to Directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

FARRBZESMT ¢

PR BAHE ST A
BHmE L
L
RRBEE

BBkt (R-TZENF=A+BEZE)

Bk A - REHmEs  ATE+
BROE S S A
(R=ZENF=ZA+"BATENTES)

EEIERLE
BRI o - gmBE ATt
HIdA

RIBARE 2 AEIHARIFES6(2) M EBTIRRTE « 17
RGEE BRERE P ILEEREEBE
ERRNEERRBFAE ERERT RSN
BERABENG LBEEE -

REERFBFAS LERETZEETHERN
RBFLARR —FATERE CEERERIN)
AT ERIEZIRB AL -

EXZREATREANBRAEG LHERTAIE
- HMMS B ARREFTELEESTHE
BERKRE  ARASEREMETE -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The related party transactions as set out in note 32 to the financial
statements constitute connected transactions of the Company
exempt from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Apart from those contracts disclosed in note 32 to the financial
statements, no Director had a material beneficial interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

At 31 March 2009, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code, were as follows:

SRR A2 2 A T R HBH AR A
ZLEER S BB EMRALUAZTERZ
- D MRBLRRLEZRE

R BHRAMESAWEEI  FR - SEFHE
ARBHEAEMME QBRI A BASEER
BEABEZANT YTEEERIFEEBEAN

B -

RZFENF=A=+—0 BRARFARER
7 MR RGIEI52R AT B 2 B - =
EMRARFREABEE (ERRFHFRHE
IRBIBXVER) 2 BRA X AR AR 19 o 7 A o ek Ik
B SURBRETRIAN G AR A R RPT2
wmERBWR

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

Directly
beneficially
owned
Name of Director E£# % ERERES
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey (Note 1) FREUE %4 (FIE1) 7,906,250
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen (Note 1) &% &t (Hi1) 21,731,250
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby Z 85 4 =
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 18 R 46 %4 1,000,000
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel %305 4 3,200,000
Notes:
1. Mdm. Huang Hsin-duan, Helen is the spouse of Mr. Chen

Ming-hsiung, Mickey.

FERHBE - HOREREE

Through Percentage
spouse Through of the
or minor controlled Company’s
children corporation issued capital
EBEEN EB Total HAARERT
REEFX ZEHAR @i RAzEsh

(Note 2)

GER)
21,731,250 269,704,752 299,342,252 46.70
7,906,250 269,704,752 299,342,252 46.70
- 269,704,752 269,704,752 42.08
- - 1,000,000 0.16
- - 3,200,000 0.50

Ptk -

1. EAWMATRREHEREZES -
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

These shares represent a 42.08% of the issued share capital of
the Company and are beneficially owned by King Strike Limited.
The issued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially
owned by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey as to 75.80%, Mdm.
Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.07% and Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby
as to 2.13%.

Name of Director EE# &

Executive Directors: HIITEE :

Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey B & 5 4
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen &&#4+
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby 2= /¢ 4=

Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 7 R4f %t &

Mr. Wong Hei-chiu E1ERB5C4E

Non-executive Directors: I {TES :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony sBS, J.p. EIXfE 4 -
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel & 3 % 4

REFEE - KF#t

Independent Non-executive Directors: B EHITEE :
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny &5t 1F %t 4
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul MH, J.p. BRI 564 -

Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven # FT 74

KEHE - KMt

In addition to the above, certain Directors have non-beneficial
personal equity interests in certain subsidiaries held for the
benefit of the Company solely for the purpose of complying with
the minimum company membership requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, none of the
Directors had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

2.

IS AR 15 AN 2 7] B B 1T AR ZN42.08% + HKing
Strike LimitedEm#EH R TE - EF ML
= R 2 5 A 5 B E & % B King Strike Limited 2
BEITIRAT5.80% * 22.07% &%2.13% °

Number of
options directly
beneficially owned

HEESRE 2 BRERE

1,650,000
450,000
2,250,000
2,350,000
275,000

600,000
2,300,000

600,000
600,000
600,000

11,675,000

FORAH

AR R
B

R Lt ESN - ETESARAR
BEAREMRARARRFEE THE
(EPNCET

I\

=
NAEZ

I:l

BREXABEEEN R_FETNAF=ZA=1—
B i%ﬁlﬂﬂi‘paﬁﬁﬁﬁf‘“%&Hﬂfﬂlﬂﬁﬂ%
BL2FATER  ARBEFETUEAMNEGAR

KB 2P 2 R R m SR AR IR A B AR
B EFZEEIAR

= E@
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEQWE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed in the share option scheme disclosures
in note 26 to the financial statements, at no time during the year
were rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any Director
or their respective spouse or minor children, or were any such
rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the Company’s share option scheme are disclosed in
note 26 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND
OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2009, the following interests of 5% or more of the
issued share capital and share options of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions:

EEREROIES 2HER

B SRR I 26T IR EE A RARE ST B 2 B 1t
S REREAER SEFARESAZER
HARKEF R BERSITEERMAEBALTR
AR RESMER Z R - AR R HEEM
MEARMES2EEMNLE  BEEEABEL
A EAENERE 22 FHRER -

SR EsTEl
AR FIBRAR A £ ) 2 SR 5 SRR I 26 B

E?go

FERREHEMATARSG REER
AR 2 m

RZZFZANF=ZA=1—B  BEARAREES
KB IGRPIEIB6IFRATFE 2 B LMK
BEEARNRADBTRARBRES %A L2 AT
LN

¥R
Percentage of
the Company’s

Number of issued share
Capacity and ordinary capital
nature of interest shares held HARDATE BT
Name &£ FORERME g EREE BAZBEDL
King Strike Limited (Note) Beneficially owned & z5# 269,704,752 42.08
King Strike Limited (Fff&E)
Commonwealth Bank of Australia Investment Manager 1% & #&£32 65,323,400 10.19
Aberdeen Asset Management Investment Manager % & #&£38 45,794,000 7.14
Plc and its associates
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc
JSEN: PN
Yeo Seng Chong Investor & & & 45,634,000 712
Lim Mee Hwa Investor & #& 45,634,000 7.12
DJE Investment S.A. Investment Manager 1% & 4¢12 39,206,000 6.12

Note: The issued share capital of King Strike Limited is beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, as to 75.80%, Mdm. Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen as to 22.07% and Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby, as to
2.13%.

B3t : King Strike Limitedz B 3 17 BN i R &5 5
B H7580% HEFHLXTEZES

22.07% N FHEEEEHHF2.13% °
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2009, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out
in the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares
and underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the
SFO.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the
Company’s total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their re-appointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

During the year ended 31 March 2008, BDO McCabe Lo Limited
(“BDQ”) resigned as auditors of the Company and Ernst & Young
were appointed by the Directors to fill the casual vacancy so
arising. During the year ended 31 March 2007, Ernst & Young
resigned as auditors of the Company and BDO was appointed
as auditors of the Company. Save as disclosed herein, there has
been no other changes of auditors in the past three years.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
Chairman

Hong Kong
13 July 2009

BEXHBEEN  RZRBEAF=A=+—
A BAATES (HABESBREX [T
RER (3 RARBIAR 19 97 2 M BUOA R | —#6)
5N BIEALBREARIEE SRR
336178 T B8 2 A2 BRI AR G 2 2
RAR -

REBEARRARARGZEN - UERESFIHM
Mo MABERH  RBALRAZARBCH
TTRA BB DR25% °

KGR EBMEREE  BRAEELKE
B =TSP R AR AR EAN 2 RBE RSB ERR
BFEAG LIRS -

BE_ZTN\F-A=T"HLFE BEEE
SMEBMARDA ((BFEGE] BHERE
REVZHED - ME KB EHAEEERT -
HZGRRZEZR BE_TTLF=-A=1+—H
IEFE - LK BN AT EEA R iR BE —
B MESXREEZEAARRFZEAE - BRA
BATREIN  RBE=FR  RBE 2 RELE
Hip g

RRESS

PR S
FRE

BB
—EENFLA+=H

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ #3£ 5B R A & | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Ell ERNST & YOUNG
=z Ik

To the shareholders of Kingmaker Footwear
Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Kingmaker Footwear
Holdings Limited set out on pages 54 to 136, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March
2009, and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing
and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation
and the true and fair presentation of financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

REEEXEBARLF
(REREZFME L BRAA])
2ERR

RMEERBERAEAES 100 EREELEE
EARAFZHBERE  HERERER DT
NEZAS+—B2EARATEERERER
ERAILFEZEARRE  GARSEBRER
BABLRER  URFESHBEBER AL
B 3 AR o

BERREFARERBEEEGIMAGRMZE
BB HREERRBEERAGI 2 KERE
RELEEM R HRABERL - ERERR
Rt Bl RgERGRLEEN QTR
BHRREE 2 AEPEE - AR BHRRTFER
REFFREBRME T 2 EXFERRA : FBENE
RBE 28R RRBEAMEHA B ZE5Th
At

BRAZEERRERMZEBZEZEVHERERE
HER - RAIZHBERBEERE-NN\—FRQF
EFERERBRBRAEE © KU Z IR E F
EEMAN - RATERARE AR AEFE
B AL B ESREEFEE -

BPERBEFTEGFMASRM T EE£L
ETEZ - ELERERRMEBETEERE - X
REIRMITER  UAEBRELEVBERRES
TEEEMEAHERERL -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31
March 2009 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

18th Floor, Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street, Central

Hong Kong

13 July 2009

BRSRATREFNERARMERRME SR
RBFEBER 2 BRER - IEEZIEFIUAREK
SRED 2 HIET - B RGO R SR AR T B B
BRERFAERERRML Z AR - EFEZERE
Ry RBMEEEZARRRENEEM AT
P SRR ARRE 2 A EREEHE - URAHEE &
ZRRF BYFERH AR AMEE 2 MEEER
BER -BRNBEIBEFIRAZEFTHERZ
BEMERAEL 2 8FHEFT BN - ARFHE
B R 2 BRI -

HPEE RMAMESZEREERRRNEER
WwHREMERE RIRHER -

HMRG  WEHRREREFBMBRELEAE
EMaFik®R EREE BEXEER-_FTAH
FZA=T—BZHBHRE BEXEEHEZA
FFEZEMEESRE  YERBEBAAIE
l 2 MBEREZ BRI -

RAGTHEI B
BEDF AT

B

FIRE AR

B & @O —H )\
—ETENFLAT=H
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

REVENUE Wz

Cost of sales #4E&BKZ

Gross profit E 7|

Other income and gains, net E U A K U 2555 58

Distribution and selling costs 75 & $5 & &2

Administrative expenses 1TH# X

Finance costs @& k2

PROFIT BEFORE TAX % A% Rl

Tax Fi18

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
AAREREE ARG R SRR

DIVIDENDS & &

Interim 7 HAf% B
Proposed final ##/& 7 21A% 5.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
AAFEZREFEAEEERER
Basic Z A

Diluted ##

5 1,463,824
(1,269,941)
193,883
5 20,268
(46,197)
(107,813)
6 (242)
7 59,899
10 (6,702)
11 53,197
12
9,723
15,974
25,697
13

HK8.20 cents &1l

HK8.18 cents &l
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1,317,857

(1,117,693)

200,164

16,304

(25,656)

(125,625)

(66)

65,121

(14,723)

50,398

9,826
13,021

22,847

HK7.69 cents #1Ill

HK7.69 cents 7#&1ll



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ REi&EE

Property, plant and equipment ¥1% ~ = & & # 14 370,526 369,094
Prepaid land lease payments T8} £ i & 5118 15 79,229 76,379
Investment properties & ¥ % 16 3,712 4,310
Deposits paid JEff#E& 4,444 2,367
Investments in club memberships & Fr& ££31% & 1,003 1,017
Available-for-sale investments B] {1 &% & 18 880 1,886
Total non-current assets FE BN & E A RR 459,794 455,053

CURRENT ASSETS #REIEE

Inventories 7 & 19 110,875 134,292
Accounts and bills receivable [ U BRIE K Zi% 20 84,388 166,912
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables

TBFIE - e REAMEWKIRIE 10,111 16,644
Derivative financial instruments $T4 £ F T & 23 6,080 15,405
Tax recoverable AJ Y [@ 73 58 326 111
Structured deposit &1 4773 21 - 11,700
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & & ZERIFE & EE 21 412,167 281,177
Total current assets i B) & E 4258 623,947 626,241

CURRENT LIABILITIES HE & &

Accounts and bills payable fE{J8RIE & Z & 22 111,051 131,482
Accrued liabilities and other payables fE&t 8 & & E fh fE 1~ BRTE 89,609 91,022
Tax payable FEfIFI1E 110,958 105,901
Derivative financial instruments $74 & &t T A 23 3,984 13,628
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t 8 SR1TIEE 24 - 1,121
Total current liabilities i E) B (HE 5 315,602 343,154
NET CURRENT ASSETS B EEEE 308,345 283,087
Net assets & E FE 768,139 738,140
EQUITY #z=

Issued share capital B 21T~ 25 64,099 65,355
Reserves f#{#& 688,066 659,764
Proposed final dividend ##)& < Hifi% 2 12 15,974 13,021
Total equity w58 768,139 738,140

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey B & Wong Hei-chiu EE&#&
Director E%# Director E%
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At 1 April 2007 R-EEHEMA-H

Final 2007 dividend declared
BER/ERLFEAARS

Exchange reserve arising from consolidation of
overseas subsidiaries recognised
directly in equity SEESNIB ARG A KA R
FEERNERBRRACES B

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale
investments L ERE 2 AT EES

Total income and expense recognised directly
in equity NERERERZ BRARAR
Profit for the year A&7

Total income and expense for the year
ENBRARFR

Shares repurchased (notes 25 and 27)
Bk, (Hixosker)

Interim 2008 dividend (note 12)
“ZT\EEPERE (Hi2)

Proposed final 2008 dividend (note 12)
RE-ZT)\ERASRE (HiH12)

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payments (note 26)
BRNEREEIARG N 25 (Kz26)

At 31 March 2008 R=ZZ/\E=F=1-R
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65,505

65,355

71,497

70,183

53

208

3,676

7812

9,362

37,087

37,087

37,087

46,399"

723

506,790

50,398

50,398
(150)
(9.826)

(13,021)

534,191

13,021

13,021

671,227

37,230
50,398

87,628

(1,464)

(9,82)

3,676

738,140



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)

At 1 April 2008
RZZZN\EMA-H 65,355 70,183 203 1812 46,399 916 534,191 13,021 738,140

Final 2008 dividend declared

BERZ =5\ EERDRE - - - - - - - (18,021)  (13,021)
Exchange reserve arising from consolidation of

overseas subsidiaries recognised directly

in equity FENIBARGARERREE

R ERERED B RA - - - - 8,238 - - - 8,238
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale

investments AEHERE 7 AT EES - - - - - (1,280) - - (1,280)
Realised gain transfer to the income statement

on sale of an available-for-sale investment

REEA L ERENERTRER

2BERNG - - - - - (106) - - (106)
Total income and expense recognised directly

in equity NERERERZ ARARRR - - - - 8,238 (1,386) - - 6,852
Proft for the year A& - - - - - - 53,197 - 53,197
Total income and expense for the year

ERERARRR - - - - 8,238 (1,386) 53,197 - 60,049
Shares repurchased (notes 25 and 27)

BERD (F2sR7) (1,256) (7,250) 1,256 - - - (1,256) - (8,506)
Interim 2009 dividend (note 12)

ZZTNERARE (HiE12) - - - - - - (9,729) - (9,723)
Proposed final 2009 dividend (note 12)

RE-ZSAERASRS (HiH12) - - - - - - (15074 15,974 -
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (note 26) ALMEREE

ARt A2 08 (Fik26) - - - 1,200 - - - - 1,200
At 31 March 2000 R=ZZNE=R=1—H 64,099 62,933 1,459 9,072 54,637 (470 560,435 15,974 768,139
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of @ ZERBEHREAKRGAEEABRZEAREE

HK$688,066,000 (2008: HK$659,764,000) in the consolidated 688,066,000 7T (= & ZT )\ 4 : 659,764,000

balance sheet. WBIT) ©
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

REXBCHERE
Profit before tax BxFi Al A 59,899 65,121
Adjustments for: &% :

Finance costs Bi& B 7 6 242 66
Interest income F 84 A 7 (10,237) (13,365)
Dividend income & 21 A 7 (573) -
Depreciation #T& 7 43,158 41,663
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments
BT T ER0E 7 2,089 1,890
Impairment allowance for doubtful debts & BRE#RIE 7 - 636
Impairment of a deposit &% F & 7 - 3,900
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories
FEREE (BEEE) 7 (1,389) 7,026
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and
equipment, net HEWE - HFE L& HIAE B1BFHE 7 88 78
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment
M - B KRR R 2 8 7 521 3,245
Amortisation of a club membership & Ffr & 5 # §4 7 14 13
Fair value loss/(gain) on revaluation of investment
properties E{HIEEMEZ AFEEE (W) 7 598 (1,250)
Gain on sale of an available-for-sale investment
HERMEHEERE 2 s 7 (106) -
Excess over the cost of business combinations
BB S O 2 A 7 (634) -
Equity-settled share option expense AMEzS4EE 2 BRI 52 26 1,200 3,676
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [& X &#) v /£ (2,966) (2,874)
91,904 109,825
Decrease in inventories 77 &8 4> 28,288 15,252
Decrease/(increase) in accounts and bills receivable
FE W AR TE R =R > (35 40) 82,524 (30,463)
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables AT FIH - £ & R H b EUERIAR 2> (35 40) 6,167 (4,862)
Decrease/(increase) in derivative financial assets
PTEMBEERSD /(5m) 9,325 (15,405)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts and bills payable
FERTEBRTE R ZE 0, Rl ) (21,780) 17,308
Increase/(decrease) in accrued liabilities and other payables
fEst B E R E A BRIEE N, OR ) (1,650) 20,101
Increase/(decrease) in derivative financial liabilities
TR AGEM, CRd) (9,644) 13,628
Cash generated from operations #& & FT{5IR & 185,134 125,384
Interest received 2 WFI S 10,237 13,365
Interest paid 215 H & (242) (66)
Hong Kong profits tax paid & 11 & & F155: (256) (252)
Overseas taxes paid & & IMNH E (1,604) (544)
Dividends paid 2 & (22,744) (22,927)
Net cash inflow from operating activities
REEBZRERAFRE 170,525 114,960
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZHZRERE
Dividend received 2 4% & 573 -
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEYHE BEIFZEEE 14 (36,338) (36,602)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, plant

and equipment HEME « BE K& EEB P15 5IE 1,167 635
Deposit paid for acquisition of a prepaid land lease payment

FUEBTEN T EREAT N S (2,268) (2,367)
Acquisition of prepaid land lease payments

W TEA it &K IA (1,320) -
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y&/ E A 7] 28 (3,500) -
Proceed from sale of an available-for-sale investment

HERAMH B ERE 2 AERIE 299 -
Increase in available-for-sale investments At 1 & & & & N (573) -
Decrease/(increase) in a structured deposit

REMETORD () 11,700 (11,700)

Increase in time deposits with original maturity of over
three months when acquired
BARRE %) =& A 25 2 & 17 5138 00 (112,442) (87,997)

Net cash outflow from investing activities
WEEB RS F5E (142,702) (138,031)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

BREFBHZRERE
Repurchase of shares & [E1f% 7 25 (8,506) (1,464)
New bank loans &R 17E - 2,411
Repayment of bank loans fEi& $R1TE (1,121) (1,290)

Net cash outflow from financing activities

BB EBIR SR F R (9,627) (343)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS ReRERBSEREM (D) FE 18,196 (23,414)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
FUsHeRERBREEE 193,180 216,228
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net
MEREH) 2 BT 352 366

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

FRZAEREFNAEEE 211,728 193,180
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

RERERREERERZ DM
Cash and bank balances IR & M iR1745 8% 21 102,776 65,454
Time deposits with original maturity of less than three months

JRE DR =ME A 2 2 E HFRK 21 108,952 127,726

211,728 193,180
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BALANCE SHEET

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ REBIEE
Investments in subsidiaries A B A 5 2 & &

CURRENT ASSETS g & E

Due from subsidiaries F&4ff & 2 71518

Other receivables E fth f& U BR 18

Cash and cash equivalents & M5 RIR & 1E B

Total current assets 20 & =42 58

CURRENT LIABILITIES #ZREB&E
Accrued liabilities and other payables JE=tT 8 f& K H th FEAf BRIE
Due to subsidiaries FE1TBE A B FUIE

Total current liabilities & & (&4 %8
NET CURRENT ASSETS #REI&EE RE

Net assets & E/FE

EQUITY &=

Issued share capital & 27T &
Reserves f#&#

Proposed final dividend ##/x < 2% 8.

Total equity #4258

Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey R 8
Director %
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17

17

21

17

25
27(b)
12

Wong Hei-chiu ZE#&

67,190

792,019
26
17,030

809,075

2,566
640,211

642,777

166,298

233,488

64,099
153,415
15,974

233,488

Director %

67,190

742,430
14
16,667

759,111

3,670
605,023

608,693

150,418

217,608

65,355
139,232
13,021

217,608



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office
of the Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
During the year, the Group was involved in the manufacture,
trading and retailing of footwear.

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties, derivative financial instruments and
available-for-sale investments, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2009. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. All income, expenses and unrealised
gains and losses resulting from intercompany transactions
and intercompany balances within the Group are eliminated
on consolidation.

EEEESBEERAAANAFEEZIMK
YZEREARR c ARRZEMMPER
fiziAClarendon House, 2 Church Street,
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda °

ARBZEBRBGR/TEER - R AK
BUERLE  EEMNTEESREM -

MBRERCREBEBTESTMASRBM 2B
Mg HmEER ([HEVBREER] HE
EREREVBRELER - BEGF LR
(I&EEER]) k2 BB EERM
Z & RBNAREE LR BUEDI 2 3 EE 5 e
5o PBBRIIBRBELRAOL MRS 1
BREWE TEERIARAHEERER
BRAFEAE - MHHERRABT (ET])
27 BREEREI AERHEECEAE
RIRIZ TR -

FEVBHRRBRARAMRENBE QR (4
BIAER]) BE_TTNF=A=1+—H
EEEZHBEHRE - ARECIEHRAE &
T A2 TR SR ERERN—2 - I
BRrzEEhoRalERS (BIAEE
BiSZERIEA) RS ARLEBEREA
RETBHEBENEL - AEEARZAFRE
RGMEEZFAERA - X RARER K&
KREERERRE ARIINES IR B Y
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The acquisition of subsidiaries during the year has been
accounted for using the purchase method of accounting.
This method involves allocating the cost of the business
combinations to the fair value of the identifiable assets
acquired, and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed
at the date of acquisition. The cost of the acquisition is
measured at the aggregate of the fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued and liabilities incurred
or assumed at the date of exchange, plus costs directly
attributable to the acquisition.

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations
and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the
current year’s financial statements.

HKAS 39 and Amendments to HKAS 39 Financial
HKFRS 7 Instruments: Recognition and
Amendments Measurement and HKFRS 7 Financial

Instruments: Disclosures —
Reclassification of Financial Assets

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12  Service Concession Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14  HKAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined
Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding
Requirements and their Interaction

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments
has had no financial effect on these financial statements and
there have been no significant changes to the accounting
policies applied in these financial statements.
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The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, which have been issued but are not yet effective,

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 and
HKAS 27
Amendments

HKFRS 1
(Revised)

HKFRS 2
Amendments

HKFRS 3
(Revised)

HKFRS 7
Amendments

HKFRS 8

HKAS 1
(Revised)

HKAS 23
(Revised)

HKAS 27
(Revised)

HKAS 32
and HKAS 1
Amendments

HKAS 39
Amendment

Amendments to HKFRS 1 First-time
Adoption of HKFRSs and HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements — Cost of an
Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly
Controlled Entity or Associate '

First-time Adoption of HKFRSs ?

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment — Vesting Conditions
and Cancellations '

Business Combinations 2

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Improving
Disclosures about Financial
Instruments

Operating Segments '

Presentation of Financial Statements '

Borrowing Costs '

Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements 2

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and
HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Puttable Financial
Instruments and Obligations Arising
on Liquidation '

Amendment to HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement — Eligible Hedged
ltems 2

AR BRI S RN TSI DA
MR 2 HET RIS EBH I
Al -

HEMBRE BAYBREEAFEIR
YEBIZE 157 K BHXERNE B R
BEREE EAIR B ST AR
AR 2758 F2THA A RIB AT
(1857) &k — REN B L A]

R B s &
B2 AT

BREMBRE BARNEEYHHE
AERIZE 157 2RI
(&455T)

BERVERE  BAMEHREERE2R
AERIZE25R ARG 1T — BB 1K
(185T) REVH

BAREMBWE EBEOP
ZERIZE 357
(&155T)

BRVERE BAMBHREERETHR
AERIZE TR THMTA  #E—
(185T) TH T AERFE S

2

BEMBRE EESE
ZERIZE 857
BE G 4R
F15R

(&185T)
HAgsH LR
F235%

(&155T)
BE G 4R
E275%

(#&1537])
EASER BHEGRIERSE325E
FRHEREE =2HITA X ZIK

BB EZZ5

R

e RIE I

SRR ARG ERE 1R
F1R (BR])  HB#HEZ 25 —
AlEE /T AR EH
ELZET
BREHER BEGFERIEI9R
SE395% M TAZIER] © #:E
(1&37) Rit&E — B E1&E#
EHH?
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

HK(FRIC)-Int 9  Amendments to HK(IFRIC)-Int 9
and HKAS 39 Reassessment of Embedded
Amendments Derivatives and HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement —
Embedded Derivatives '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13  Customer Loyalty Programme '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 15 Agreements for the Construction of
Real Estate '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign
Operation '

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17  Distributions of Non-cash Assets to
Owners 2

HK(FRIC)-Int 18  Transfers of Assets from Customers °

Apart from the above, the HKICPA has also issued
Improvements to HKFRSs* which sets out amendments
to a number of HKFRSs primarily with a view to removing
inconsistencies and clarifying wording. Except for the
amendment to HKFRS 5 which is effective for the accounting
period beginning on 1 April 2010, other amendments are
effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2009
although there are separate transitional provisions for each
standard.

L Effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2009
2 Effective for accounting period beginning on 1 April 2010

2 Effective for transfers of assets from customers received on
or after 1 July 2009

Improvements to HKFRSs contains amendments to HKFRS
5, HKFRS 7, HKAS 1, HKAS 8, HKAS 10, HKAS 16, HKAS
18, HKAS 19, HKAS 20, HKAS 23, HKAS 27, HKAS 28,
HKAS 29, HKAS 31, HKAS 34, HKAS 36, HKAS 38, HKAS
39, HKAS 40 and HKAS 41.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it has concluded that while the adoption
of HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8 may result in new or
amended disclosures, these new and revised HKFRSs are
unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results
of operations and financial position.

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as
to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, financial assets and investment properties),
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined
for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the income statement in the
period in which it arises.
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An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to
the income statement in the period in which it arises.

Any excess of the Group’s interest in the net fair value of
the acquirees’ identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities over the cost of acquisition of subsidiaries
(previously referred to as negative goodwill), after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in the income
statement.

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the income
statement in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
property, plant and equipment, and where the cost of
the item can be measured reliably, the expenditure is
capitalised as an additional cost of that asset or as a
replacement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are
as follows:

Freehold land Not depreciated

Buildings 5%

Leasehold improvements  over the shorter of the lease
terms and 10% to 25%

Machinery, furniture, 10% to 25%

equipment and motor

vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
balance sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the income statement
in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the costs incurred
in connection with the construction of property, plant
and equipment less any impairment losses, and is not
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
during the period of construction. Construction in progress
is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for use.
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The useful lives of club memberships are assessed to be
either finite or indefinite. Club memberships with finite lives
are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that the club
memberships may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for club memberships with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each balance
sheet date.

Club memberships with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. Such club memberships are
not amortised. The useful life of a club membership with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If
not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite
to finite is accounted for on a prospective basis.

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
held to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation,
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the balance
sheet date.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in the income statement
in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and receivables and available-for-sale financial assets,
as appropriate. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or loss, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded derivative is
required to be separated from the host contract when the
analysis shows that the economic characteristics and risks
of the embedded derivative are not closely related to those
of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs if there
is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required
under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.
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Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also designated as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments or financial guarantee contracts. Gains
or losses on investments held for trading are recognised
in the income statement. The net fair value gain or loss
recognised in the income statement does not include any
dividends on these financial assets, which are recognised
in accordance with the policy set out for “Revenue
recognition” below.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, except
where the embedded derivative does not significantly
modify the cash flows or it is clear that separation of the
embedded derivative is prohibited.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method less any allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate and transaction costs. Gains and losses
are recognised in the income statement when the loans
and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets in listed equity securities that are
designated as available for sale or are not classified in
any of the other two categories. After initial recognition,
available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair
value, with gains or losses recognised as a separate
component of equity until the investment is derecognised
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
reported in equity is included in the income statement.
Dividends earned are reported as dividend income and
are recognised in the income statement as “Other income”
in accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue
recognition” below. Losses arising from the impairment of
such investments are recognised in the income statement
as “Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets”
and are transferred from the available-for-sale investments
revaluation reserve.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range
of reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that
investment or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates
within the range cannot be reasonably assessed and used
in estimating fair value, such securities are stated at cost
less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm’s
length market transactions; reference to the current market
value of another instrument which is substantially the
same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other valuation
models.
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The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.,
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced either directly
or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the impairment loss is recognised in the income statement.
Loans and receivables together with any associated
allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect
of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset
does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

In relation to accounts and bills receivable, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor and significant changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor) that the Group will
not be able to collect all of the amounts due under the
original terms of an invoice. The carrying amount of the
receivables is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Impaired debts are derecognised when they are
assessed as uncollectible.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Available-for-sale financial assets

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised in
the income statement, is transferred from equity to the
income statement. A provision for impairment is made for
available-for-sale equity investments when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its
cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists.
The determination of what is “significant” or “prolonged”
requires judgement. In addition, the Group evaluates other
factors, such as the share price volatility. Impairment losses
on equity instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement.

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

o the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party
under a “pass-through” arrangement; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.
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Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the
asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the
maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.

Financial liabilities including accounts and bills payable,
other payables and interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are initially stated at fair value less directly attributable
transaction costs and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. The related interest
expense is recognised within “Finance costs” in the income
statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
amortisation process.

Financial guarantee contracts in the scope of HKAS
39 are accounted for as financial liabilities. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially at its fair value
less transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of the financial guarantee contract,
except when such contract is recognised at fair value
through profit or loss. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Group measures the financial guarantee contract at
the higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
balance sheet date; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised
in accordance with HKAS 18 Revenue.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3585 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT £ 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AEENEZEUNZEEEMSRERE
ZHEN - B BERRREZREELMBA
BoEREO®R AW EEEZIREEE
HHE - ZEEESERBAR  KHEALEE
BEEZRZIAEE - EAAKEHREEER
BEFORECALE2E  AIDEEE
ETAZBREE 2 FREERASENAE
BZREBEHELR (UABREERE) FE -

MHABEREMNERERE - EMEMNK
BEGABERREER  KOARFEREER
FEIE R BRATIFR - HERRIABRNXER
BEAGTE - HERRIRZZEL NEAER
BRATIR - AR E X R B R [ At
BN | RRER o

B EBURERSGETHE - AN aRE

REE -

BERTERNEIRBEAZHBKERE
I SHBAERE - —DPBERE S
EHNE AR ERBEZEREAGHK
FIBRERA DB MELEZ R DRAELT
R BRIEAORNAATEFTABRE -
RNER & - AEEBATI —FE PR
BEHMHEERAOETEE  (\RNEE
HERBEBABRAX 2 REMHRE
Ri)ENERCBREREE LG EA
F18I WA | PREER 2 RTEHHE (E
) -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability,
and the difference between the respective carrying amounts
is recognised in the income statement.

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, e.g.
forward currency contracts, to hedge its risks associated
with foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and
are subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to the income statement.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts
with similar maturity profiles.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis
and, in the case of work in progress and finished goods,
comprises direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.
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A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the income
statement.

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity
if it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a
different period, directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can
be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own
functional currency and items included in the financial
statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions are
initially recorded using the functional currency rates ruling
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
balance sheet date. All differences are taken to the income
statement. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet
date and their income statements are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year. The resulting exchange differences are included in
the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
entity, the deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of
overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can
be measured reliably, on the following bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

(b) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms;

(c) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset; and

(d) dividend income, when the shareholder’s right to
receive payment has been established.

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (i) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is an associate;

(c) the party is a jointly-controlled entity;

(d) the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(e) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (d);

() the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (d)
or (e); or

(9) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using an appropriate pricing model, further details
of which are given in note 26 to the financial statements.
In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken
of any performance conditions, other than conditions
linked to the price of the shares of the Company (“market
conditions”), if applicable.
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The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the relevant
employees become fully entitled to the award (the “vesting
date”). The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each balance sheet date until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at the
beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had
not been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised
for any modification, which increases the total fair value
of the share-based payment arrangement, or is otherwise
beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the
original award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3585 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT 43} 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NRSEE 2R HHRA - E RS AR
B - EERK KRG ESE
THHE (NEREE X2 ERESRTZ
RUEBRM) &R AER - E5B A
g BESEIRIANAESERE 2R
ZFHRETFX - RREB RSB A LA
SEHERKERBOERTAMSENRE
et - ERXR—HEAEERRAZMRE
R TR R E R S 1) B B AR e SR

HRERDERABBHOBRE - T2HER
TR BRFDSEREMATERBES
MR LB RIRRSN - SR ZIEB A
5 REMAHEMBREHDEERK - T
M5 ﬂ HREENX  AERERCRE -

fE A A E 2 BB MES
%%%%ﬁi?*?éﬂﬁm%ﬁlﬁﬁﬂ
""""" B7KZE o SN - A REE B HAyE
AR EERARD XL E R
?ﬁﬁ%ﬁm'ﬁﬂﬁEﬁXEMMﬁ~ﬂ
FETLZ T EHRFX °

fiE AR A Z BIRER AT - [EHRRR

EREHB MRS - (A AR ER A ERE
MR - B AR - AT ERTHE
RS B EHERRE - YRR B
ERERBARE  AICEHENBRENHE
BEDREAERRBRENEE - —FIR
Ffrat

A EFRAE N - RTTE R A EE R
& RRGEINRNES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 in respect of equity-settled awards and has
applied HKFRS 2 only to equity-settled awards granted
after 7 November 2002 that had not vested by 1 April 2005
and to those granted on or after 1 April 2005.

Retirement benefits schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.
The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in overseas are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain percentage
of their payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheets, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. When
these dividends have been approved by the shareholders
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
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Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including
term deposits, which are not restricted as to use.

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities, at the reporting date. However,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart
from those involving estimations, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on
its investment property portfolio. The Group has determined
that it retains all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of these properties which are leased out on
operating leases.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance sheet date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year, are discussed below.

Provision for obsolete inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aged analysis at
each balance sheet date, and makes allowance for obsolete
and slow-moving inventory items identified that are no
longer suitable for use in production. The management
estimates the net realisable value for inventories based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market
conditions.

Impairment allowance for doubtful debts

The Group makes impairment allowance for doubtful
debts based on an assessment of the recoverability of
accounts and bills receivable. Allowances are applied to
accounts and bills receivable where events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of doubtful debts requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from the
original estimate, such differences will have impact on
the carrying value of the receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/write-back in the period in which such estimate
has been changed.
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Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (i) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products and services they provide.
Each of the Group’s business segments represents a
strategic business unit that offers products and services
which are subject to risks and returns that are different
from those of the other business segments. Summary
details of the business segments are as follows:

(@) the casual footwear segment represents the
manufacture and trading of casual footwear;

(b) the babies’ and children’s footwear segment
represents the manufacture and trading of babies’
and children’s footwear;

(c) the rugged footwear segment represents the
manufacture and trading of rugged footwear; and

(d) the footwear retailing segment represents the retailing
of casual footwear and accessories.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments,
revenues are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to
the segments based on the location of the assets. The
Group’s geographical segments include the United States
of America, Europe and others. Europe mainly includes the
United Kingdom, Belgium and Holland.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following tables present revenue, profit and
certain asset, liability and expenditure information for
the Group’s business segments for the years ended
31 March 2009 and 2008.

TREINAEBHE_TTNF R
EENF_A=+—"HLEFEREH
DRz Wt BHRETEE
BEKFAXZER -

Group AEH

Segment revenue: 28K :
Sales to external customers
HETIHIREPE 703,909 717,705 711,482 536,631 34,828

Segment results 5B %4E 38,639 41,801 28,170 24,264 1,943

Unallocated income and gains, net

AORBA R M= FE
Unallocated expenses KA T EX
Finance costs Bi& XA

Profit before tax B Al 7l
Tax 78

Profit for the year AN E i 7

Assets and liabilities BER A&
Segment assets D EEE 252,198 355,706 245,784 219,940 45,259
Unallocated assets ADBLEE

Total assets & E#(E
Unallocated liabilities X2 EL& &

Other segment information:
Hitp BEH
Depreciation: # & :
Segment %8 19,960 19,908 18,608 15,901 2,514
Unallocated &2 2

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments: %578 L FAEIE
Segment £ %8 692 693 846 579 77
Unallocated %2 it

Capital expenditure: AR :
Segment 748 18,507 29,697 16,785 5418 1,068
Unallocated 2 fic

63,621 13,605 - 1,463,824 1,317,857

3,744 (15,695) - 53,067 69,809

20,268 16,304
(13,184)  (20,926)
(242) (66)

50,899 65,121
(6,702) (14,729)

53,197 50,398

54,024 5,881 - 549,122 629,670
534,619 451,624

1,083,741 1,081,294

315,602 343,154

4,149 824 - 41,906 39,958
1,252 1,705

43,158 41,663

144 - = 1,615 1,416
474 474

2,089 1,890

1,438 3,604 - 39,964 36,553
61 49

40,025 36,602

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3545 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT %%} 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table presents revenue and certain TREJNAEBEHEZE _TTNFER -
asset and expenditure information for the Group’s ZENF=A=+—HIEFERHE
geographical segments for the years ended 31 March NIz ERE TEERASZ 2
2009 and 2008. B} o

Group REE

Segment revenue: 2 :
Sales to external customers
HETINREFR 737,320 653,525 613,372 590,136 113,132 74,196 1,463,824 1,317,857

Other segment information:

HthpBEH

Segment assets 2 A E 38,455 108,531 36,694 57,049 1,008,592 915,714 1,083,741 1,081,294

Capital expenditure & A E% - - - ~ 40,025 36602 40,025 36,602
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents WEMANEBEZEXE  BHRRERES
the aggregate of the net invoiced value of goods sold, FHEAMEEEm2 ERFEEMN - WEK
after allowances for returns and trade discounts, and after HEBARAQAREZRS -

eliminations of intra-group transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains, net is as
follows:

Revenue Wiz
Sale of goods HE&E & M@

Other income and gains, net E i A Rk W FE5E

Bank interest income 877 F| B A

Interest income from accounts receivable [ W BRIEF 8 U8 A

Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments
THEemIA AT EKE

Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEWE  BERREEB 2 EE

Fair value gain/(loss) on revaluation of investment properties
BHREMEZ AT ERE /(E18)

Gross rental income A& WA 4858

Foreign exchange differences, net &% Z 8 %8

Gain on sale of an available-for-sale investment & A H £ & I 25

Dividend income A% B4 A
Excess over the cost of business combinations #2i@ & 6f 2 ik 7~
Others Efih

Interest on bank loans wholly repayable within five years
BRAFREEEERE ZRITERZFE

1,463,824

6,499
3,738

5,159

(88)

(598)
300
3,928
106
573
634
17

20,268

242

Yozt - E A RUGEEEATOT -

1,317,857

10,074
3,291

1,777
(78)
1,250

240
(8,102)

2,852

16,304

66
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ RNEE 2 BB ADE R TR (GEA) A
(crediting): TIER :
Cost of inventories sold & FE KA 906,389 823,219
Depreciation #T& 43,158 41,663
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments # #78 (< + it 7 & 1A 2,089 1,890
Impairment allowance for doubtful debts 5 8R8 EXE# - 636
Provision/(write-back of provision) for inventories 17 S5 /(B E @) (1,389) 7,026
Impairment of a deposit & & (A - 3,900
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

for land and buildings T RIEEF 2 L& HEE T « HIEHER 10,641 1,591
Write-off of items of property, plant and equipment

M -~ B REREHIE B 2 #EH 521 3,245
Auditors’ remuneration # StEl B & 1,280 1,145

Employee benefits expense (including directors’ remuneration (note 8)):

BERANAX (BRESME ()

Wages and salaries T& & ¥4 290,234 253,477

Equity-settled share option expense A#Ezs 452 7 BEARHERT 2 1,200 3,676

Pension scheme contributions iE K& &+ 2I 4t 3 9,456 10,151

300,890 267,304

Amortisation of a club membership & Ffr & £5# & 14 13
Fair value gain on derivative financial instruments

MTESRI Az AFEKS (5,159) (1,777)
Fair value loss/(gain) on revaluation of investment properties

BEHREVEZAFEER, (W) 598 (1,250)
Gain on sale of an available-for-sale investment & Al fit H &8 & 7 Y8 (106) -
Bank interest income R1TF S WA (6,499) (10,074)
Interest income from accounts receivable &4 8R k2 & 2 WA (3,738) (3,291)
Foreign exchange differences, net [ ¥ = 58,38 (3,928) 3,102
Excess over the cost of business combinations #8825 4 §f 2 A A (634) =
Dividend income A& 2 A (573) -
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEWE - BKERREER 2 EEFE 88 78
Net rental income JE#f & A (231) (180)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost of sales includes HK$275,943,000 (2008:
HK$216,290,000) relating to direct staff costs and
depreciation of manufacturing facilities, which are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed above
for each of these types of expenses.

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) and
Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, is
as follows:

Fees 8%

P

- Independent non-executive directors — ¥ FEFH1TE =

— Non-executive directors — JE#ITE =

Other emoluments: E A B4

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 2BE R EWAIZ

Discretionary bonuses E #&4
Pension scheme contributions (B K4 5t 2|tk

Equity-settled share option expense ARzt 45 E 7 BRI HERT =X

During the year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further details
of which are set out in note 26 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised
in the income statement, was determined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.

HENABREENREEES TRARRER
He T & 275,943,000/ 7T (Z 2T )\ 4F :
216,290,000% 7T) « AT E B E R A E#
BRMAE 2 SERAYZA -

TR EEWSIRBEBHERIMERA
AIFH EMAR (LW REBAA
IEFIE161EHENT

540 540
180 180
720 720
5,993 5,774
1,822 2,142
13 12
211 797
8,039 8,725
8,759 9,445

TR ETEFEARBBERESEZT
RIBEHANEE 2 RIGER TRERE £
B IB DA B T AR MY RE26 - ERIRA
BRERAZZEEREZ AFERRH AN
BE  MEBsRNAFERBRR . RBANHN
AN EEEHMREL D A -

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3545 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT %%} 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI 75 s P ot

31 March 2009 R —ZFEZE N F=H=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEM=E »)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BYFHTES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors FANTBIYFNTES 22BN
during the year were as follows: T~

Equity-settled
share option

expense

Fees DUREREE 2 Total

s BRERX Mg

2009 HK$’°000 &t HK$000 Fi#7x HK$'000 Fi& T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 5235 1E %t 4 180 14 194
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul FR1& )& &4 180 14 194
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven T %4 180 14 194
540 42 582

Equity-settled
share option

expense
Fees AERER 2 Total
ik BARER HEE
2008 HK$'000 F/&7c HK$'000 T/ HK$'000 T 7T
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 5235 1F 9t 4 180 49 229
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul BRI /8 A& 180 49 229
Mr. Yung Tse-kwong, Steven /I %4 180 49 229
540 147 687
There were no other emoluments payable to the FARAVEEMENBIIERTEE Y
independent non-executive directors during the year e (ZETN\F : 8E) -

(2008: Nil).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BT A P ot

371 March 2009 R —FZENF=H=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEME »

(b) Executive directors and non-executive (b) BITESRIFHITES
directors
Salaries,
allowances Pension Equity-settled
and benefits scheme share option
in kind Discretionary contributions expense Total
Fees #¢ #EHR bonuses Bike MUEZZEZ remuneration

ae BNAE HEgs SERR BRERX [
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000

TERT TET TER TEx TER TERT
2009
Executive directors: HI{TES :
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey
BRERIE A - 2,520 773 - - 3,293
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
BEAmIT - 900 277 - 10 1,187
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby Z#i T4 - 633 399 - 44 1,076
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel *
BRI - 565 50 12 40 667
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian
MRGEE - 1,310 323 - 44 1,677
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu &2 7t & - 50 - 1 17 68
- 5,978 1,822 13 155 7,968
Non-executive directors: FHTES :
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel *
BT - 15 - - - 15
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony
FxEEE 180 - - - 14 194
180 15 - - 14 209
180 5,993 1,822 13 169 8,177
* Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel has ceased to be an * RS EETBIETRTE S W EEIER
executive director and was redesignated as a TESZ BT TNF=A -+ BBEM -
non-executive director with effect from 16 March
2009.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2008

Executive directors: H{TEE :
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey

R - 2,520 884 = 135 3,539
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen
BEAmAT - 900 329 - 25 1,254
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby Z 85t 4 - 570 583 = 147 1,300
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel
BT A - 600 50 12 147 809
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 11 &4 504 - 1,184 296 - 147 1,627
- 5774 2,142 12 601 8,529

Non-executive director: E#{TES :
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony

Jp S s 180 - - - 49 229
180 5,774 2,142 12 650 8,758
There was no arrangement under which a director EEMERFRNE L ERZTHEME
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during SRABEMEAMNME (ZZENEF :
the year (2008: Nil). ') o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The five highest paid employees during the year included
four (2008: five) directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of
the remaining one (2008: Nil) non-director, highest paid
employee for the year are as follows:

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥& ~ 288 R EW I

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2008: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. The lower Hong Kong
profits tax rate is effective from the year of assessment
2008/2009, and so is applicable to the assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the whole year ended 31 March
2009. Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Group: A%EHE :
Current — Hong Kong BNEAF:IE — &
Charge for the year ARFEFEEST H
Overprovision in prior years 8t S FREE 1
Current — Elsewhere BIEF{1E — H i@
Charge for the year ARFEFEEST H
Overprovision in prior years 8t 4 [Z FREE B 1

Total tax charge for the year NG EFiHEH X 45

TR AERSFEEEENS (ZFTN
F:0%) EF EHMESHFREN LXK
8- FW  Ep—R (ZFTN\F: £) ¥F
ExmmFEREZHMEFRBROT

801 =

BAEFEHIBBEF AR B SR HETE
SRR M 216.5% (ZEZENF 1 17.5%)
ZHREREBE BREZBEBFEHRBEENR=Z
SN/ ZEENRMFERBER - Bt
HRAREBEZZTNF=A="+—HILZE
FEAEBBHRIMZ BRFUAAN - HibthEg
B FE R B s I 2 BITE TH IR AR B & 5 A
FRR RERRZBTEN 2B RIE
Bl E R AT E o

156 324
- (118)
13,752 14,517
(7,206) -
6,702 14,723
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates
is as follows:

Group

Profit before tax B &% B F

Tax at the applicable tax rate 2@ AT R+ & 2 1A

Lower tax rate for specific provinces or enacted by local authorities

FEE A (03 E R BRIR I X
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior years
BAFERIERSZ A
Income not subject to tax HERE U A
Expenses not deductible for tax T~ a] 1 2 2
Tax losses not recognised 7 fER R IE E518

Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate

BASEBERRERFE 2 HEM

The applicable tax rate is calculated based on the Hong
Kong profits tax rate of 16.5% (2008: 17.5%), the Vietnam
Corporate Tax rate of 10% to 28% (2008: 10% to 28%),
the Taiwan Corporate Tax rate of 25% (2008: 25%), the
preferential tax rates in Mainland China ranging from 18%
to 25% (2008: 18% to 25%) and respective tax holidays
granted to the subsidiaries of the Group in Mainland China
and Vietnam, respectively.

In general, the Group’s subsidiaries in Mainland China,
which were subject to the People’s Republic of China’s
corporate income tax at the rate of 33% before 31
December 2007, are subject to the rate of 25% after the
effective date of the Corporate Income Tax Law of the
People’s Republic of China on 1 January 2008, except for
certain subsidiaries which are entitled to tax holidays and
preferential tax rates.
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BARNARREMNE R FERR ZAERH R
AT 858 B A BR B A F 2 T TE S B R BB
HEFE 2B HEERNOT ¢

rEE

59,899 65,121
15,360 18,707

(5,151) (5,986)

(7,206) (118)

(621) (441)

2,150 2,561

2,170 =

6,702 14,723
HRAMERBERBNSEHEE16.5% (=ZF
TNFE 17.5%) » BELERREI10%E
28% (—Z T T )\¢ 10%E28%) ~ & &

EMBIE% (ZZTTNF :25%) - F E
BEBEENT18%E25% 2 H (ZEZT N
F :18%ZE25%) RAKE 5 A E K&
FEZMBARMESBET T E

—RME ' ASBEZHENNBARZIRME
33% (MZZFEZTLF+=A=+—HMNA)
BN EAREMBCEMER - RAEH
L25% (MRHPEARLMBESEMESH AL
MzA (BIZEZEN\F—A—HIR)) &
FEARKMBCEMSH  HETHER
AIER T EH BB EABRIN -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group has estimated deferred tax assets of
approximately HK$8,889,000 (2008: HK$6,719,000)
calculated on tax losses arising in Hong Kong that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that
have been loss-making for some time and it is considered
not probable that the Group can utilise these losses in the
foreseeable future.

The consolidated profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2009 includes a
profit of HK$45,930,000 (2008: HK$12,445,000) which has
been dealt with in the financial statements of the Company
(note 27(b)).

Interim — HK1.5 cents (2008: HK1.5 cents) per ordinary share

RS — BREEB.5EIL (ZZTTN\FE : 1.5%4)

NEBE 2 ([ EHEER I & E 4 /8,889,000
BT (ZZFZ/\F £ 6,719,000/87T) + JhiR
BREBEG 2HIBEEAE - 256180
R AR EHE SRS BB 2 AR BB FERT
wA e ARZENB AR —HEEEE - B
AEBEER RGREAZEEE 2 AT
A RIERE AEIERRAEERIBEE -

HE_ZTZAF=ZA=1+—"BLFE
ZEARNAERBEAEBRGLGEESRENA
& H45,930,0008 T (= T T )\ F:
12,445,000/ 7T) * E R AR 7] i 7% W X
(FzE27(0)) FIBR °

Proposed final — HK2.5 cents (2008: HK2.0 cents) per ordinary share

BRAREMRE — SEER2.58 I (ZTT/\F : 2.0/1l)

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

9,723 9,826
15,974 13,021
25,697 22,847

REFFRARIR B BB AR B IRRNEIF
RITZBRFEFRE LHER - TAMEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$53,197,000 (2008: HK$50,398,000) and
the weighted average of 648,930,029 (2008: 655,000,926)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$53,197,000 (2008: HK$50,398,000) and
650,254,770 (2008: 655,132,777) ordinary shares, being
the weighted average number of shares outstanding during
the year, adjusted for the effects of the dilutive potential
ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

A reconciliation of the weighted average number of shares
used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share
is as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating
basic earnings per share AR ETE FIRERBAH| 2 LA N5 E

Weighted average number of ordinary shares assumed to

have been issued at no consideration on deemed exercise of

all dilutive options outstanding during the year

FARERTER2EARITEAIEEIEREMRRBERTZ

RN

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in calculating
diluted earnings per share AR ET & G IRESER T 2 L@ I T E
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BREARBFDBREBEAFERNARIREFE
AN (G =% 153,197,000/ 7T (ZZZT )N\
% : 50,398,000/ 7T) M FNE EITE AR
hn#E SF 15 £1648,930,0208% (— BT )\ F -
655,000,926/%) 5T & o

BREERFIRBERNFERNATERFE
AN (G =% F153,197,000/ 7T (ZZZE )N\
% : 50,398,000/ 70) MK F AL ZHITEE
BEEBER S EELARE 2 FADET
38 AR h0 A& 19 £0650,254,7700% (=T F
N 1 655,132, 7778%) 51 & -

AR EERERREER N 2 IO nEF
VECARMT

648,930,029 655,000,926
1,324,741 131,851
650,254,770 655,132,777



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Cost; (A
At beginning of year A4 4] 404,394 - 267,500 671,894
Additions /R E 699 9,123 26,516 36,338
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 28)

WEEKHTB AR (HizE28) - - 562 562
Disposals & - - (6,409) (6,409)
Written off #l i - - (776) (776)
Exchange realignment /& % 10,380 - 7,190 17,570
At 31 March 2009 R—ZEZTNE=A=1+—H 415,473 9,123 294,583 719,179

Accumulated depreciation: 2517 % :

At beginning of year A4 4] 125,369 - 177,431 302,800
Provided during the year & & 18,425 - 24,733 43,158
Disposals & - - (5,154) (5,154)
Written off 54 - - (255) (255)
Exchange realignment 4\ % 3,428 - 4,676 8,104
At 31 March 2009 R—ZEZNE=A=+—H 147,222 - 201,431 348,653

Net book value: BEEHE :
At 31 March 2009 R=Z2ZENFE=A=1+—H 268,251 9,123 93,152 370,526

At 31 March 2008 R=ZEZEN\FE=A=1+—H 279,025 - 90,069 369,094
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI R

31 March 2009 R —ZFEZE N F=H=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14. Y% - BERRKE &)

(continued)
Group REE
Machinery,
furniture,
equipment,
leasehold
improvements
Freehold and motor
land and vehicles
buildings  Construction  #28 + {XH
KAERE in progress ®fE - HE Total
T REF HEIR WEEBRAE &t
31 March 2008 R=EEN\F=A=+—H HK$'000 F#7T HK$000 T HK$000 FEmx HK$000 FHT
Cost: B :
At beginning of year RE#] 347,671 = 256,786 604,457
Additions /N E 23,066 - 13,536 36,602
Disposals & - - (1,451) (1,451)
Written off #{$4 - - (27,842) (27,842)
Exchange realignment S #8 % 33,657 - 26,471 60,128
At 31 March 2008 R=EENEF=A=1+—H 404,394 - 267,500 671,894
Accumulated depreciation: 25T :
At beginning of year RE#] 98,751 - 162,948 261,699
Provided during the year & /R B 17,310 = 24,353 41,663
Disposals & - - (738) (738)
Written off #$4 - - (24,597) (24,597)
Exchange realignment §h\& 5% 9,308 - 15,465 24,773
At 31 March 2008 R=ZTENF=A=+—H 125,369 - 177,431 302,800
Net book value: BREFE :
At 31 March 2008 R=ZETNFE=A=+—H 279,025 - 90,069 369,094
At 31 March 2007 R=ZEZE+&=A=+—H 248,920 - 93,838 342,758
The Group’s land included above are analysed as REEz it ST T -
follows:
2009 2008

HK$’°000 T8t

HK$'000 T 7T

Freehold land held outside Hong Kong RE&BIMNEEEE 2 K A EE L1

8,324

7,793
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Carrying amount at beginning of year R F 4] Z BRE{&
Additions RNE

Amortised during the year 7A4F 7 # §5

Exchange realignment 4N 382

Carrying amount at 31 March R=A=+—H ZEm&
Current portion included in prepayments, deposits and
other receivables 5| ATESFIR & & & E Ath fE U5k IE 2 BN EAEL 5

Non-current portion FEBIEFEE

The Group’s prepaid land lease payments are held under
the following lease terms:

78,398 76,098

3,687 =
(2,089) (1,890)

1,386 4,190
81,382 78,398
(2,153) (2,019)
79,229 76,379

AEE AN HAEREZ T HABE
A

Held in Hong Kong under medium term leases A& B R EH AL H 16,444 16,893

Held outside Hong Kong under medium term leases

REBUIMBEREH RHEOFH

Fair value at beginning of year IRE#] 2 A&
Fair value gain/(loss) on revaluation Ef& A FEWES (E18)

Fair value at 31 March R=A=+—BZA¥&

The Group’s investment properties are situated outside
Hong Kong and are held under medium term leases.

The Group’s investment properties were revalued
on 31 March 2009 by Castores Magi (Hong Kong)
Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers, at
HK$3,712,000 on an open market, existing use basis.

64,938 61,505
81,382 78,398
4,310 3,060
(598) 1,250
3,712 4,310

AEBZREMFRUNRERFEIN  RPHHE
WFA -

RZZBEZNF=ZA=+—8  ~EBZKE
MERBIYIEXSGERGEMSEEZ (F58)
BERATZRARTS BITHBEESHA
3,712,000/ T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Unlisted shares, at cost 3E_E AL » $RAAS 67,190 67,190
Due from subsidiaries F&U i & A 7718 792,019 742,430
Due to subsidiaries &1 ¥ & A 7 FIA (640,211) (605,023)
218,998 204,597
The amounts due from/to subsidiaries included in the FEUR R MIB A R FRIBRT AR R R Z
Company’s current assets and current liabilities are PFEEMRBAE  HAEER RERA
unsecured, interest-free and are repayable on demand. RIBAFEE -
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows: FTEMBRARZFBET

Directly held E##H

MJ Haig Industries Limited * British Virgin Ordinary
EEBBRBRHEBERAR Islands/ US$10,000
Taiwan Rl
HEARR 10,000% 7T
Ready Luck Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary
RBRRARES US$5,000
Liak
5,000% 7T

Indirectly held B8
Discovery Star Development Limited Hong Kong &8 Ordinary HK$2
MEERARAA LimkoBT
Kingmaker (Vietnam) Footwear Co., Ltd. Vietnam #5& US$15,000,000
B2 5% (Br) BRAA 15,000,000% 7T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):

Indirectly held (continued) BiEi5HE (£)

Lightening Star Corporation

Maystar Footwear Company Limited
(“Maystar”)
ZERERRAF ([E£)])

Miri Footwear International Inc.

Miri International Limited
BEEREZRNHERAR]

Profit Success Investment Limited

MEXREBR AT

Kingmaker Footwear (Zhong Shan) Co., Ltd.
(“Kingmaker Zhong Shan”)
JE2 g4 (L) ARAR ([NEEF L)

British Virgin Islands Ordinary
RBRRRES Us$1,000
L
1,000% 7T
People’s Republic US$43,000,000
of China/ (Note (a))
Mainland China 43,000,000% 7T
REARANE (Pt 7E(a))
Bl A
British Virgin Ordinary US$1
Islands/ TERAET
Mainland China
EBEARES
Bl A

Ordinary HK$2
TmiRoB T

Hong Kong &%

Hong Kong &8 Ordinary
HK$1,000
EAM1,0008 7T

People’s Republic US$29,723,000
of China/ (Note (b))
Mainland China 29,723,000%& T
REARLNE (Pt &E (b))
B A

100

100

100

100

100

100

TEMBARZFHENT (&) :

Investment
holding
REER

Footwear
manufacturing
EEHESEM

Sourcing of
raw materials
for footwear
and footwear
trading
REHE
EmRE K

BEREMEM

Provision of
administrative
services

REITRA S

Investment
holding
REER

Footwear
manufacturing

HEEREMD
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):

Indirectly held (continued) B35 (&)

Sanford Resources Limited

Transcommerce International Inc.

Victory Universal Corporation

Kingstar (Jiangxi) Footwear Limited
(“Kingstar Jiangxi”)
2 OIf) EXERAR (ERIA])

Future Bright Development Inc.

Kingmaker (Cambodia) Footwear Co., Ltd.
B2 5E (RER) BRAA

British Virgin
Islands/Vietnam
EBERARES
Him

British Virgin
Islands/
Mainland China
EBRBRAHS
B At

British Virgin
Islands/
Mainland China
EBRBRHS
B At

People’s Republic
of China/
Mainland China
REARLME
B At

British Virgin
Islands

RBABARES

Kingdom of
Cambodia
RIBEEE

TEMBARZFHENT (&) :

Ordinary US$1
L@RIET

Ordinary US$1
L@BIET

Ordinary US$1
LEBIET

US$4,210,000
(Note (c))
4,210,000 T
(FftzE(c))

Ordinary US$1
LRBIET

Ordinary
US$1,000,000
Rl
1,000,000% 7T
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HEEREMD

Trading of
footwear
products

Footwear
manufacturing
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows

(continued):

Indirectly held (continued) BiEi5HE (£)
Opal Star International Holdings Limited **

BEFGRERERAR

Star (1) Limited *
BEMNERRAA

Star (2) Limited *
BEEQARRA

Star (3) Limited *
BEQRRRAA ¢

Viewexcel Limited *

BRERAF *

Notes:

British Virgin Islands
EEERARES

Hong Kong &%

Hong Kong &%

Hong Kong &%

Hong Kong &7

TEMBARZFHENT (&) :

(@)

Maystar is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under the law of the People’s Republic of China. The
registered capital of Maystar amounted to US$43,000,000 at
31 March 2009. The registered capital was fully contributed
during the year.

Kingmaker Zhong Shan is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise under the law of the People’s Republic of China.
The registered capital of Kingmaker Zhong Shan amounted
to US$30,000,000 at 31 March 2009. The remaining unpaid
capital contribution of approximately US$277,000 (equivalent
to HK$2,161,000) is required to be paid up prior to 1 July
2010 (note 31(ii)).

Ordinary US$1 100 Investment
L@RIET holding
REER
Ordinary 100 Retailing of
HK$100 footwear
LEIR10078 T products
TEEREM
Ordinary HK$1 100  Dormant
TmiR1B T Emex
Ordinary HK$1 100  Dormant
TRERBTT Emay
Ordinary HK$2 100 Dormant
L@m2BT EmeEx
B =k -
(a) EETRBEPEARLMBEEFMAKL

R BBEELE AR —_TTNAF=A=
+— B 2 & & 7 %43,000,000% 7T ° 7
MERERFRBE °

B2 LR P ZE AR LMBEEEMAK
NRINEEESE  HR-_TThF=A
=+— Bz #M& 4 A530,000,000% 7T
HHBT A HEAEEL H277,000E T (#
E£2,161,0008 L) - AR T —ZTF+
A—BaRigE (E31(i) °
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Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows
(continued):

Notes: (continued)

(c) Kingstar Jiangxi is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned
enterprise under the law of the People’s Republic of China.
The registered capital of Kingstar Jiangxi amounted to
US$11,920,000 at 31 March 2009. The remaining unpaid
capital contribution of approximately US$7,710,000
(equivalent to HK$60,138,000) is required to be paid up
prior to 15 August 2009 (note 31(ii)).

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other member
firm of the Ernst & Young global network.

*k

Incorporated during the year.

w During the year, the Group acquired Star (1) Limited, Star
(2) Limited, Star (3) Limited and Viewexcel Limited from
independent third parties. Further details of the acquisition
are included in note 28 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in
particulars of excessive length.

Hong Kong listed investments, at fair value &% & & @ AT E

During the year, the fair value loss of the Group’s
available-for-sale equity investments recognised directly in
equity amounted to approximately HK$1,280,000 (2008:
gain of HK$193,000).

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on
quoted market prices.

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3585 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT £ 2009

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TEMBARZFHENT (&) :

MisE : (&)

() FEEIAREPEARIMBEEREMK
SNANEBELE  HRZZThF=A
=t+—BZaFMEAAE11,920,000% 7T
HHBT AN HEEREL /7,710,000 7T
(#851160,138,000/ ) * AR =TT A,
FNATREBRIEE (HFES1()) °

- WIMBEBL KGN EHARLKER
B2 IRAEE 2 @ B RAIER °

o RNEFERREMAAL -

# RER AEEBBIE=FKRBEE()
BRAR - EEQBARAR  EEQAR
REAINRBERBRAR - WEEHE2E—F
FIBEHN MK FE28 ©

BEEMRR - ERAFIRRBTZELAFER
ANERANEEBEEFEERTD AR
TZMBATE c EFAREINEMME QA
FEREEFERTIE

880 1,886
RERN  BEERBAERZ AEBAHEE

fe A& 2 N FEEEL A1,280,0007% 7T
2T )NF : Y§z5193,000/87T) ©

EHREZ R HETNIETSRESE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Raw materials R #1#}
Work in progress £ &
Finished goods B/

Accounts and bills receivable & U BRI Kk ZiE
Impairment J&{E

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable mainly related
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers. Payment
terms with customers are largely on credit. Invoices are
normally payable within 90 days of issuance, except for
certain well-established customers, where the terms are
extended to 180 days. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise
credit risk. Overdue balances are regularly reviewed by
the Group’s senior management. Accounts receivable
are non-interest-bearing, except for a balance due from
a customer of approximately HK$30,514,000 (2008:
HK$90,312,000) which bears interest at a rate of 0.5% for
a fixed period of 60 days.

59,028 80,320
13,042 20,587
38,805 33,385
110,875 134,292
86,681 169,205
(2,293) (2,293)
84,388 166,912

AEBZEWEBRZEBEFZRIDHEAE
REEBZEFPEH -HLTEP 2NEEG
HREEZEREFEEFN - REXREBBHEARK
ZETEPAREHZEZ180A NERKIN
—BEFPZERIAWH - REEEITE
BB R E 2 W ERTE - BUBREER
b o EARNRIEHAEESREERET
HEZ - BREBETFTE  E—UBEFPX
2 %5 #30,514,000/8 7T (ZZTZT)\F :
90,312,000/ L) #&0.5E 2 BXRF B«
EERT B HIE A60R -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills receivable as DEYMR BHRERE - EIRIBEREER
at the balance sheet date, based on the date of goods HEHZERRSITWT ¢

delivered, is as follows:

Within 90 days 90H A 84,388 166,831
Between 91 and 180 days 91 HZ=180H - 71
Between 181 and 365 days 181 HZ2365H - 10

84,388 166,912

The movements in provision for impairment of accounts

FBREBERRBRZBEREBES WM

and bills receivable are as follows: s =

At beginning of year & 4]] 2,293 1,657
Impairment losses recognised (note 7) B MR EREE (F:E7) - 636
At 31 March ®R=HA=+—H 2,293 2,293

ATA L EIRARTE R BB ERE 2 KB
AIRMEEE2,293,0008 7T (ZTTN\F ¢
2,293,000/ 7T) I E & RRE 2 FE KR 1B
YEH 7 B 82 293,000 7T (Z BT )\ F
2,293,000/ L) - AL B W\ X %
BAETMERREMEERAZE -

Included in the above provision for impairment of accounts
and bills receivable is a provision for individually impaired
trade receivables of HK$2,293,000 (2008: HK$2,293,000)
with a gross carrying amount of HK$2,293,000 (2008:
HK$2,293,000). The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

I ARA8 A IR E 2 IR TE & 21 7 BR iR
DT

The aged analysis of accounts and bills receivable that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired 7 8k &k HIRFE 78,547 143,247
Less than 90 days past due #8490 H 5,841 23,655
Over 90 days past due #HiE3#E90H - 10

84,388 166,912
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate
to a few recognised and creditworthy customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

Cash and bank balances IR & M R1T45 64 102,776

Time deposits with original maturity of less than
three months RTEZEAR DR =& A 2

TEHATE X 108,952

Time deposits with original maturity of over
three months when acquired

RUERE R SHEB =4 2 EHER 200,439
Cash and cash equivalents IR & N ERIRETEE 412,167

Structured deposit &1 14173

The structured deposit was a time deposit with a fixed
maturity date. The interest rate on the structured deposit
fluctuates based on changes in currency exchange rate.
The Group uses the structured deposit primarily to enhance
the return on investment. The structured deposit was stated
at amortised cost and fully redeemed during the year.

b #5360 ) o Rk B 2 FE MR IR S e D BB K
AEEZERP WEOBYEBRNKE

BB EY EIERE YR FRE
TRAKEBRRIFZELTR - BAGRE
B ARAEEMRR  LEFERZFE
SIELRERE  RARGEERYEEX
B - MERIDRRIEAT2E0ER - NEME
T E AR A A ERREEMER
RITLE -

65,454 46 44
127,726 16,984 16,623
87,997 - =
281,177 17,030 16,667
11,700 - =

EEMETFRREEEINHE 2 TR - &8It
TR N RRBINEE R E) - AEE T
ZUBEBUFZTREARELDR - BEIEFR
Ty SR ASESL N FAZEED -
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At the balance sheet date, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”) amounted
to approximately HK$28,868,000 (2008: HK$9,756,000).
The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is
permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through
banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and one year depending on
the immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates.

The bank balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable as at the
balance sheet date, based on the date of goods received,
is as follows:

Within 90 days 90H A

Between 91 and 180 days 91 H=180H
Between 181 and 365 days 181 HZ%=365H
Over 365 days 365H LA +

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are
normally settled on 90-day terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REEB AEENRARE ([ARE]) &
B 2R e KRTT 48R 4)1£28,868,000/ 7T
(ZZZT)\F :9,756,000/870) ° AREETT
SEBRLBAHMER - Am - REFEI
P B BB R 4ETE - SERMEEERE -
REEEEEETINEEB ZRITEAR
EEBRREME -

PR SRE B BITFRAE 2 FHFEE
B EMERzBRE-BE—FTE 8
TREEZ BB BRME - REWEH
FHAES -

RITEELREMERFEECEERIFZE
17 AW EHER -

Nz g B BAEE  BNERBERERR
BEBEZREDHMT

102,357 128,669
2,301 1,730
4,081 127
2,312 956

111,051 131,482

ERBRIETET S - B—MRAEMNOR NBHT °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Forward currency contracts iz Hi4NiE & 4 6,080 3,984 15,405 13,628
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts are the REIMNEE A 2 RAEEEQAFEMER - £
same as their fair values. The above transactions involving M RITESRI AR 25 T8 BN 2
derivative financial instruments are with creditworthy banks sk BEBRITET -

with no recent history of default.

The Group has entered into various forward currency AEBEVZERPEREHNEELRE
contracts to manage its exchange rate exposures which did FEAE R STHRRIE 2 IMNER R o FEH
not meet the criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the HNESTHE T A 2 A TE# 8% 5 /8319,000
fair value of non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to BIL(ZZEZENF 1,777,000 L) * B
HK$319,000, net, were credited to the income statement SFAFAZB@mKP o

during the year (2008: HK$1,777,000).

Trust receipt loans, unsecured April 2008
SREBURE R - IR 3.80-3.85 —ZEZEN\FMA - 1,121

Notes: B3 -

(a) At 31 March 2009, the Group had available banking facilities (8 RZTTENF=RA=+—H A£EEHE
amounting to HK$256,000,000 (2008: HK$266,500,000) of &) 4317 RS $£256,000,000/8 7 (Z B
which approximately HK$2,612,000 (2008: HK$1,285,000) J\EF : 266,500,000/ 7T) - AR E BB A
was utilised. The banking facilities were supported by 2,612,000 7T (ZZZ )\ F : 1,285,000
corporate guarantees executed by the Company and certain BIT) c RITHEBRARRIREETHEA
of its subsidiaries. AR A AR -

(b) The bank loans were all denominated in United States (b) ERITEFRHUAEITFHE °
dollars.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings AEBEEEZFEAEEEATERS -

approximate to their fair values.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Authorised: JATE :
Balance at beginning and end of year
N RFRER

Issued and fully paid: B %17 REE :

Balance at beginning of year F#14& 653,546,445
Repurchased f& 2] (12,556,000)
Balance at end of year F#& 46 640,990,445

During the year, the Company repurchased its 12,556,000
(2008: 1,500,000) ordinary shares at a price ranging from
HK$0.48 to HK$1.01 (2008: HK$0.94 to HK$1) per share at
a total consideration of approximately HK$8,506,000 (2008:
HK$1,464,000). 10,844,000 (2008: Nil) and 1,712,000
(2008: 1,500,000) repurchased ordinary shares were
cancelled during the year and subsequent to the balance
sheet date, respectively. Details of the repurchases are
disclosed in the Report of the Directors under the heading
of “Purchase, redemption or sale of the Company’s listed
securities”. The premium of approximately HK$7,250,000
(2008: HK$1,314,000) paid on the repurchase of such
shares was debited to the share premium account and
an amount of HK$1,256,000 (2008: HK$150,000) was
transferred from retained profits of the Company to the
capital redemption reserve, as set out in note 27 to the
financial statements.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Company
repurchased and cancelled 2,014,000 (2008: 2,500,000)
of its ordinary shares at a price ranging from HK$0.59 to
HK$0.67 per share at a total consideration of approximately
HK$1,274,200 (2008: HK$2,420,000).
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1,000,000,000

1,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
655,046,445 65,355 65,505
(1,500,000) (1,256) (150)
653,546,445 64,099 65,355

RAFE - AR A LAER0.487% 7T £1.01
BT (ZZEZE)N\F 0948 T 218 T)
2 B 1% B8 B 212,556,000/ (= & & N\
 :1,500,0000%) E@KR BREHN A
8,506,000/ 7T (= F & J\ £ : 1,464,000
7 JT) ° BT B @ 210,844,000 (= T =
NE: F) &1,712,0000% (ZEE )\ £ -
1,500,000%) ZBERE D AR EFE R
HERZEH BOsHBIREFTEW
ERNBE BRKXEEAQRFRZ EHE
5] —B - pERBBERMAZN ZEELN
7,250,000/ 7T (= E ZF /L4 : 1,314,000
L) EBRGEERTNR - WERAR
AR B8 2 A 8 81,256,000 T (ZFEEN
% : 150,000 L) ZEARER HE (R o
BIREMIEE27) ©

REE B % - NAFIAER0.59%8 T E0.67
B2 BEER KFFIE2,014,0000% (=F
Z )\ 4 : 2,500,0000%) L@ - BRELD
£1,274,200% 7T (ZZFZ N\ : 2,420,000
HIT) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme included the Company’s directors (including
independent non-executive directors), other employees of
the Group, suppliers of goods or services to the Group,
customers of the Group, any person or entity that provides
research, development or other technological support to
the Group, and any shareholder of the Group. The Scheme
became effective on 28 August 2002 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Scheme may not exceed 30% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. The maximum
number of shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Scheme
and any other share option scheme of the Company
(including exercised, cancelled and outstanding options)
to each eligible participant in any 12-month period up to
the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant.

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, are subject to approval by the independent
non-executive directors of the Company. In addition, any
share options granted to a substantial shareholder or any
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to
any of their associates in excess of 0.1% of the shares of
the Company in issue on that date or with an aggregate
value (based on the price of the Company’s shares at
the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any
12-month period, are subject to shareholders’ approval in
a general meeting.

The period within which the options must be exercised will
be determined by the board of directors of the Company
at its absolute discretion. This period will expire no later
than 10 years from the date of grant of the options. At the
time of grant of the options, the Company may specify a
minimum period for which an option must be held before it
can be exercised. The offer of a grant of share options may
be accepted within 21 days from the date of the offer, and
the amount payable on acceptance of an offer is HK$1.

RABZLERERS ([AFHE])  B%&
SR REREAAREESKNELERMZE
BIR2HE - AFTEZABERSHEREAR
RNEIZEE (BEBMYIERNTESE) K&
ErHMES  A&EBE 28R RGEHE
B AEEZER  AAEBIREME - H
B HMREM ST E 2 EM AT TE R ARE
BEAKR - AXFER = _FNA=F
NBER - MREFHIIEETI - %A
AT AR E -

RITEARBEA IR B M RITEZAERE
Bt A 1T 2 IiD B8 NEBBARF
EREE #HTRM 230% - REER L
B H EER21E A B A 1T E AR R A E 8
R AR BEMEE MR A 81 2 FE R
(BHRETE - FHERRITEZBRE)
mAESHa ERSEERTRAETZHN
By TRBEXAARNEHAHEHTR
N2Z1% °

MARRZES  THAH - TERERE
=FER YN sl 1 A= F < VNN AV
JEEITEE ZRUE o o EMA121E
BERE - MAARARER—BEFERE B
VIERTEELFSEEMBHBARE S LB
BARRBRZHEEBEITIRD0.1%K B EHE
85,000,000/ 7T (RIBZA D &) R &% H A H
2R ERGTE) 2 BiRE - BIAARAS
ERIRR A S SRR R AL

BRRATIEZHHBAARRESS 2%
RTE o R HEFNERNE D EEEE AL+
FREM - R LBRER - NRBAETE
BERETENARAZZEHR - Z&R
hz BRETREZRR DL A HEF21IRA
EH o BERAREESERARMETZR
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The subscription price for the shares of the Company to
be issued upon exercise of the options shall be no less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on the date of grant; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant;
and (iii) the nominal value of the share of the Company on
the date of grant.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RIEBREEITRER K ET 2 ARRIRD 2R
BE  THREROARXFBRMHNELBHE
BEBMARZMARRAR ([BXAHM]) 88
RERMBZWHE : (AN DFRONEE
BEHAMA R EEX A ERIMERRER
PRz FHWRTE - R(i) AR 2 B R &R
HAHBCEE=EF28a% °

FEAAE Y R T4 A AU B SR BR A
T EREZER -

TIBRIE RFE ARG E T RITE 2B
1

Directors 2
Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey 550,000 = = 550,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3200
TREE e ZZIME-ATRE CEEIMF-ATMAZCE-CFNACTtA
550,000 - - 550,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZERNETATER CEEAETATZRECE-CEN\AZ TR
550,000 - - 550,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZRRNE-AzB  ZBENE-ACBEZE-ZENACtTLA
Mdm. Huang Hsiu-duan, Helen 100,000 - - 100,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3.200
EARRT ZZIME-ATME CREMF-ATMAZCR-CF\ACTtA
100,000 - - 100,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZEEAETATEA . CEEAFTATZAECE-CENACTLA
100,000 = = 100,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZZE\§-AZR  ZEE\E-RZREIF-—H/\AttR
= 60,000 = 60,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZEAE-ARR ZEERAE-RRAECT-—HNACttA
- 45,000 - 45,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-RAR “5-ZF-B-BE F-—fN\A-TtAH
- 45,000 - 45,000 5January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500

ZERNE-ARA ZEF-B-RECE-CHNACTtA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2 T%:F&% Bﬁ G

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year: (continued)

Number of share options R E

L

BRAESTE

TIBRERFE ARG E T RITE 2B
& (E)

31 March 2009 )} —ZEZE 7|, F =

Exercise

—H

Price of the
Company’s
shares at

At price of grant date of
At 1 April Granted  Forfeited 31 March share  options™*
Name or category of 2008 during during 2009 Date of grant options** RERE
participants R=ZENE  theyear  theyear WZZENFE  of share options*  Exercise period of share options EREz RURHZ
SEELZAER mA-A EREH ERRM =R=t-B  EREZREAY  BREZGEDE TRE* RAARE™
HKS &7t HKS AT
Directors (continued)
g2 (&)
Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby 400,000 - - 400,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3.200
Ex it ZZEME-ATRA FENF-AtHAZE-E-—F\A=t+tA
600,000 - - 600,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1,010 1.010
“EENETATZR S NE+ATZAZ-5——E\A=T4A
600,000 - - 600,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZZEN\§-AZH  ZERN\E-RCREZZ-HN\A-TtA
- 260,000 - 260,000 5January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENE-ARE ZERAE-RRRECE-CEN\A-THH
- 195,000 - 195,000 5January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENF-AAA —25-A-RAE-2-F\A=ttA
- 195,000 - 195,000 5January 2009 1 January 2011 10 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZE—5-F-BECF-ZH/\A-ttR
Mr. Kimmel, Phillip Brian 500,000 - - 500,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3.200
ARMGESE ZZEME-ATMA CREMF-ATRAZECE-FN\AZTLA
600,000 - - 600,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZERNETATER . CERAETATZRECE-CEN\AZ TR
600,000 - - 600,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
“ZE\E-A=R S \F-AZAE=3-—FN\A=TLA
- 260,000 - 260,000 5January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZERAE-RRAECE-ZEN\A-TA
- 195,000 - 195,000 5January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
“ZENE-ARA -2F-A-BE-F-ZE/\A=TtA
- 195,000 - 195,000 5January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENF-AER Z3—F-R-REZZ-FN\A-TtA
Mr. Wong Hei-chiu - 27,500 - 21,500 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
EERTE ZZENF-ARR ZERAF-RRAECE-ZHN\A-TtA
- 82,500 - 82,500 5January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZTENE-RAR —T5-f-BEZT-Z§NATtA
- 82,500 - 82,500 5January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENF-AER Z3—F-R-REZZ-FN\A-TtA
- 82,500 - 82,500 5January 2009 1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE3-ZF-R-RECZ-HN\A-TtA
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BRI 75 R P ot

31 March 2009 R —FEZE N F=H=+—H

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 26. IEAHERTE ¢
The following share options were outstanding under the TH A REARGTE T RITEZER
Scheme during the year: (continued) W (48)
Price of the
Company’s
Number of share options &R E%(H B dEesad
At price of grant date of
At 1 April Granted  Forfeited 31 March share  options***
Name or category of 2008 during during 2009 Date of grant options** RERE
participants RZZENE  theyear  theyear WZZEZNE  of share options*  Exercise period of share options EREz RHAHZ
SREN LR MA-A  EREH  FARK ZAST-A  BREZBHEH  BREZGEDE TR RATRRE™
HKS 7% HKS 7
Directors (continued)
g (9
Mr. Chow Wing-kin, Anthony 200,000 - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
AxREE ZEEAETATER . ZEEAFTATERECIT-ZENACTEA
200,000 - = 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZZE\F-AZH  ZER\F-RCREZZ-FN\A-TtA
- 80,000 - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZEEIAE-RRAECT-ZHNACttA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE-ZE-R-RECE-HN\A-TtA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE—F-R-REZZ-HN\A-TtA
Mr. Chan Ho-man, Daniel 500,000 = = 500,000 14 January 2004 14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3200
AR ZZEME-ATMA CREMF-ATMAZCE-ZFN\AZTEA
600,000 - - 600,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
ZERNETATER CEEAFTATEAZCE-ZFN\AZTEA
600,000 - - 600,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZZEN\F-AZH  ZERN\F-RCREZZ-ZFN\A-TtA
- 240,000 - 240,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZEEIAE-RRAECT-ZHNACttA
- 180,000 - 180,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE-ZF-R-RECE-HN\A-TtA
- 180,000 - 180,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE—F-R-REZZ-HN\A-TtA
Mr. Tam King-ching, Kenny 200,000 - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
BRIEAE ZEEAETATER . ZEEAFTATERECIT-CENACTEA
200,000 - = 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZZEN\F-AZHR  ZERN\F-RCREZZ-FN\A-TtA
- 80,000 - 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZERAF-RRAECE-ZHN\A-TtA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZE-TE-F-AECT-ZHNACttA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500

ZERNE-ARR ZR—E-A-BECE-ZENACTLE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following share options were outstanding under the

81 u%#&%‘%ﬁﬁ At

31 March 2009 )R — FZE /14 = +—H

FERAERTE
50 AR R PR BT R (TR 2 BB AR

Scheme during the year: (continued)

Number of share options EERES H

& (#)

Price of the
Company’s

Exercise shares at

At price of grant date of
At 1 April Granted  Forfeited 31 March share  options**
Name or category of 2008 during during 2009 Date of grant options** RERE
participants R=ZENE  theyear  theyear WZZENE  of share options*  Exercise period of share options BREz HURHZ
SRENZ RN mA-A ERRE  ERRW ZR=T-8 BREZELRE  BREZGREEM TEE* RARRE™
HKS 7 HKS AT
Directors (continued)
g2 (2
Mr. Chan Mo-po, Paul 200,000 - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
RixREE ZEENETATER . CEEAFTATZAZCE-ZFN\AZ TR
200,000 - = 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZTENF-AZR ZET\E-AZRAECT-ZHN\A-TtA
- 80,000 - 80,000 5January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZEENE-ARR CERAE-RRRECE-CHN\A-THA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5January 2009 1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENF-ARR ZE-ZF-R-RECZ-HN\A-TtA
= 60,000 = 60,000 5January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZTENF-ARR Z3—F-A-RECT-ZHNA-TtA
Mr. Yung Tse-kwang, Steven 200,000 - - 200,000 13 October 2006 13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
APk “E5ETATER “E5FtRT=AZ-E-—F\A=TtH
200,000 - - 200,000 2 January 2008 2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
ZTEN§-AZR  ZER\E-RCRECF-ZHN\A-TtA
= 80,000 = 80,000 5 January 2009 5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZZENE-ARE CERAE-RRRECE-CEN\AZTHA
- 60,000 - 60,000 5January 2009 1 January 20100 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
ZZENE-ARR ZZ-TE-F-AECT-ZHNACttA
= 60,000 = 60,000 5 January 2009 1 January 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0500
ZZENF-ARR Z3—5-R-RECZ-ZHN\A-TtA
8,550,000 3,125,000 - 11,675,000

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 £ #3£5E5 R ‘A & | ANNUAL REPORT 3R 2009

117



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year: (continued)

Other employees EftlEE 6,550,000 - - 6,550,000 14 January 2004
In aggregate A it “ZTmE-F1MmA
7,020,000 - - 7,020,000 14 January 2004

“EEME-ATRA

9,880,000 - (150,000) 9,730,000 13 Qctober 2006

Z25551+A1=R

11,650,000 - (850,000 10,800,000 2 January 2008

—2Z)\&-A-H

- 5,884,000 - 5,384,000 5 January 2009

“ZSNE-RRA

- 4,476,000 - 4,476,000 5 January 2009

“ZSNE-RRA

- 4,476,000 - 4,476,000 5 January 2009

“ZSNE-RAA

- 84,000 - 84,000 5 January 2009

“TENE-FRR

35,100,000 14,920,000  (1,000,000) 49,020,000

43,650,000 18,045,000  (1,000,000) 60,695,000

Notes to the reconciliation of share options outstanding
during the year:

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

> The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other
similar changes in the Company’s share capital.

The price of the Company’s shares disclosed as at the
date of grant of the share options is the Stock Exchange
closing price on the trading day immediately prior to the
date of grant of the options. The price of the Company’s
shares disclosed as at the date of the exercise of the share
options is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange
closing prices over all of the exercises of options within the
disclosure line.
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TIBRIE R FE ARG E T RITE 2B
& (&)

14 January 2004 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3200
ZEEME-ATMAZ=E-—§\A=TtA

1 January 2005 to 27 August 2012 3.225 3.200
ZERRE-A-BEE-—ENAC TR

13 October 2006 to 27 August 2012 1.010 1.010
3T ETATZRECE A=t

2 January 2008 to 27 August 2012 0.850 0.850
“EEN\E-A-BEF-—ENFttA

5 January 2009 to 27 August 2012 0.500 0.500
ZEENF-ARRE-S-FNAttA

1 January 2010 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
“2-FF-A-RECZ-ZEN\A-TtA

1Jamuary 2011 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500
“E—5-R-BE-E-"EN\ACTLA

1 January 2012 to 27 August 2012 0500 0.500

5 —F-B-BE-F-FNA-TtH

FRARITEBIRAELRRMEE

* BRE.ERBIARNAHEEMAGAITR
HELE -

o BREZTEESRE AR EKAL T2
BEREMARBRAZ EULSTER -

o PR EERRER L BB 2 AR B RGBS
TYEEBRER L R B — @50 25
ZPTWTE o B EERET R A2 A
REBMDERTERNKERN A EE
PR HETT {50 55 2 Bt SR P AR T (B A0 P A 8K -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Company had 15,620,000,
12,980,000, 14,050,000 and 18,045,000 share options
with exercise prices of HK$3.225, HK$1.01, HK$0.85
and HK$0.50 per share, respectively, outstanding under
the Scheme, which altogether represented approximately
9.47% of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.
The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would,
under the present capital structure of the Company, result
in the issue of 60,695,000 additional ordinary shares
of the Company and additional issued share capital of
HK$6,069,500 and share premium of approximately
HK$78,379,800 (before issue expenses).

The fair value of the share options granted during the year
was HK$2,419,000 (2008: HK$3,676,000) of which the
Group recognised a share option expense of HK$1,200,000
(2008: HK$3,676,000) during the year ended 31 March
2009.

The fair value was estimated as at the date of grant using
Black-Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used for the
year ended 31 March 2009:

Date of share options granted: #% i BB B HA -

Volatility (%): & 18 (%) :

Risk-free interest rate (%): & & F 2K (%)

Expected life of options (year): BER%#E 2 TEEAFHY (F) :
Dividend yield (%): i% 8% (%) :

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data and is not necessarily indicative of the exercise
patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects
the assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of
future trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

REER ARAREAGEEL M
m R 1T F 2 B R # X H15,620,000
%~ 12,980,00013 * 14,050,0001p &
18,045,0001% * & HEARREE A B 81T
B&17 499.47% 1T E D Al B EAK3.225
BT~ 1.0187T ~ 0.858 7T 0.50/8 7T 1R
BARRRIRRRAZRE  2EITERITER
B% #E 7% 38 35 KE /1 8% 1760,695,0008% 48 A &
TR - MEBTRARRGRER S RIE
hne,069,5007% 7T K& 4978,379,8007%8 7t (5K
HRBETER) -

FAE A BB AR 2 A B 52,419,000
7T (ZZTZ)\F : 3,676,000/870) * HARK
HE_TZTNAFE=A=1+—HIFE K&
I i SR B8 A% 7 79 51,200,000 7T (Z 2=
J\4E : 3,676,000/ 7T) °

RFEIRELERERAAR - FRHER
AfbEET - EZBR O BRE 2 RK S I&A -
TRIERRBE—_TENF=A=+—H
EEMERZEXZBAER

5 January 2009 2 January 2008

—EEAF —ETNEF
—HBEH —HZH
50.90 41.34

1.23 3.07

3.64 4.65

5.38 3.45

ERECBERFRDRRELSETE - B
RUBERRAI IR 2 TR - RHIK IR
RRARIE LR IBB RN ARBE 2RK - B
ARBERDEERGERAR o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity of the financial statements.

AEERAERRBEER 2 HER
ERASDRAYBIRE 2 54 2%
BE -

At 1 April 2007 R=ZZS+4MA—A 71,497 53 66,982 4,196 4,544 147,272

Profit for the year (note 11) & RF| (Ff3E11) = =
Shares repurchased (note 25) BRI (P5E25) (1,314) 150
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (note 26)

RMERHEEARD 2 7R (F17526) = =

Interim 2008 dividend (note 12)

2T N\FRBRE (FF12) - -
Proposed final 2008 dividend (note 12)

BR-ZZNFRERE (F:H12) = =

At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008

= = 12,445 12,445

- - (150) (1,314)
- 3,676 - 3,676
- - (0,826) (0,826)

i - {8021)  (13,021)

RIBEN\F=A=1T-AK=ZET\§HA-A 70,183 203 66,982 7,872 (6,008) 139,232
Profit for the year (note 11) R (FizE11) - - - - 45,930 45,930
Shares repurchased (note 25) B =Rk {) (PiFE25) (7,250) 1,256 - - (1,256) (7,250)
Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (note 26)

RN R EE ARG T 2508 (FizH26) - - - 1,200 = 1,200
Interim 2009 dividend (note 12)

ZEENFHRARE (ME12) - - = = (9,723) (9,723)
Proposed final 2009 dividend (note 12)

BEZSZINFRARE (ME12) - - - - (15,974) (15,974)
At 31 March 2009 R=EZhE=A=1—8 62,933 1,459 66,982 9,072 12,969 153,415

Kingmaker Footwear Holdings Limited 15 2 #3585 R /A 5] | ANNUAL REPORT £ 2009



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The proposed final dividend account within the equity
section of the balance sheet represents an appropriation
from retained profits and therefore forms part of the total
of such reserves until the dividend is declared and paid. In
addition, any excess of the appropriation over the retained
profits reserve will be replenished by dividends declared to
the Company by its subsidiaries when they are approved
subsequent to the balance sheet date. The directors of the
Company anticipate that the approval of such dividends
from subsidiaries will be confirmed in due course.

The contributed surplus of the Company represents the
excess of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation in September
1994, over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued in exchange therefor.

On 16 April 2008, the Group acquired 100% interests
in Star (1) Limited, Star (2) Limited, Star (3) Limited and
Viewexcel Limited (collectively known as “MOCCA”) at a
cash consideration of HK$3,672,000 from independent
third parties (the “Acquisition”). MOCCA are engaged in the
trading, distribution and retailing businesses of footwear,
bags and accessories in Hong Kong.

REERBERERT ZHIKRMRERTE
REEMIEL 2 —THFAR - AR ERHE
BEETHS BERBEEEREXMNR
L o EAN - FTED PR AR BRI Il 2 OB
REUARRBINBRRANBEERRAART]
BRI B ER - AR EAVETRM ©
ARRREEEHKREMB AR ZEBREH
MR I RER o

RRBZBABKRTERE-NANOFEAA
SEEARKRENEBRRRD Z A FER
BARR RRB|ZFEEMRITRG <@EE
ZER e

RZEENFEA+ B AEEBBEL
FE-FRBEENERAR - EEQAR
NE - BEQ)BRATKBRBERAT (&
A [MOCCA]) v 28tz  MENREBEA
3,672,000/ 7T ([ W #E =18]) - MOCCATE
EBNEEE  HBERREMHiZES  HHEK
g%%fn °
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The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
MOCCA as at the date of acquisition and the corresponding
carrying amounts immediately before the Acquisition were
as follows:

Plant and equipment = & 3%

Inventories 17 &

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
BRI - e REMEKIRIE

Cash and cash equivalents 3R & N %5 RIIR4IEH

Accounts payable FE{fBRIE

Other payables E i & < 8k 18

Excess over the cost of business combination
recognised in the income statement

RBmAER BREH S HF AR

Satisfied by cash AR & X f+t

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents
in respect of the Acquisition is as follows:

Cash consideration ¥ & X (B

Cash and cash equivalents acquired Fr/33R 4 K5 RIIE £ HEH

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MOCCAR R EERBERKER B2 A
FE - REEWEEIAA 2 AH /R EE
T

14 562 562
3,482 3,482

1,676 1,676

172 172

(1,349) (1,349)

(237) (237)

4,306 4,306

7 (634)
3,672

RUWEBEBE RS NERFESER 2 F Rt
DATEAT

(3,672)
172

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the Acquisition

REERZ RS RFRBELAR 2 FRH

Since its acquisition, MOCCA contributed HK$13,141,000
to the Group’s revenue and loss of HK$13,700,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Had the business combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue and net profit of the Group
for the year would have been HK$1,464,375,000 and
HK$53,029,000, respectively.
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(3,500)

BUEEEIAK  MOCCAEREBEZE
T EEAF-ZA=t+—HLEEFEEZRKER
k13,141,000 T K R 4R & = Al 7 SR B 18
13,700,0005 7T °

WEBEHFRENEL  AAREEBFERNZ
U 2§ & 45 7 3% 5 Bl A1,464,375,0007 T K
53,029,000/ JT. °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at 31 March 2009, the Company had provided corporate
guarantees to certain banks for banking facilities provided
to certain of its subsidiaries. These banking facilities had
been utilised to the extent of approximately HK$2,612,000
(2008: HK$1,285,000) as at the balance sheet date.

The Group leases its investment properties (note 16
to the financial statements) under an operating lease
arrangement, with a lease negotiated for a term of 5
years. The term of the lease also required the tenant
to pay security deposits.

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable
operating lease with its tenant falling due as follows:

Within one year —F K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

—EZFhF (BREREMF)

The Group leases certain of its land and buildings
under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms of two to three years.

RZBZNF=ZA=1+—8 ARRGES
THIEB AR TR TRE A T RITIRE
NAER BELER  ZERTHEZ
BEEATEEL E2,612,0008 T (ZEEN
F 1 1,285,000/87C) °

AREREBE - DEEROLHHEE
BREYE (MBERRMEE16) - HAH
R ARE - BHOGRITERE
FXfR#ES °

REEE > AEEREEBFIL
PHREHE 2O 2 KRR KEHE U
RBB BB

364 =

1,152 =

1,516 =

AEERBEEHOLHEEHET

T RETF  HOBRITZHHSRE
B=F-
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

Within one year —F K
In the second to fifth years, inclusive

—EZELF (BREREMF)

In addition, the operating lease rentals for certain
retail shops are based on the higher of a fixed
rental and contingent rent based on sales of these
retail shops pursuant to the terms and conditions
as set out in the respective rental agreements. As
the future sales of these retail shops could not be
accurately determined, the relevant contingent rent
has not been included above and only the minimum
lease commitments have been included in the above

REER  AEEREBETAEELE
MYz KRRZEBNN B 2R
BRI

13,219 979
10,474 36
23,693 1,015

BEAN - RIBER BB E B Z G R
kit BETEEEHZREHEOAR
RETHEXZETEEHHERT
BaAEE (ABRSERE) BE -
MR TR EREEXETEEM IR
KHER B ERAIBEEAREIA
B MERBEREBLFAE -

table.
The Company did not have any operating lease REEER - RNAFNEEMLLERL L HE
arrangements at the balance sheet date (2008: Nil). (ZZZNF - &|) o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 30(b) above, the Group had contracted for the
following capital commitments:

(i)

(i

(i)

At the balance sheet date, the Group had
commitments in respect of management fees payable
falling due as follows:

Within one year —F K

In the second to fifth years, inclusive
E_ZFENF (BEBERSF)

After five years L AR

At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments
in respect of investments in wholly-foreign-owned
enterprises in Mainland China as follows:

Maystar % £
Kingmaker Zhong Shan JEZ & 1L
Kingstar Jiangxi 15 £)L 7%

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital
commitments in respect of property, plant and
equipment and prepaid land lease payments as
follows:

Contracted but not provided for & 5] £)1B AR 2
Construction of factory buildings /& A B T2
Prepaid land lease payments 81+ ith F & 3k

B £ 3B TE30() AT 7 3l 2 48 & A9 A 4
S REEIFH T INEARAET LA

(i)

(if)

(i)

REER » ZRER T HAR2IHE

MzERBEARNT
566 502
2,263 2,263
18,276 18,906
21,105 21,671

REER  AEEEBRETBEAMIN

FEEEREZAENT
- 5,834
2,161 2,161
60,138 89,076
62,299 97,071

REZER  NEEBEEME  BREKRHK
R IEA T SRR 2 B AR A
I

11,769 463
- 2,956
11,769 3,419
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Contracted but not provided for 2 3] 4118 R &4
Establishment of production plants in Mainland China
TR B 3 5% S A E TR

The Company did not have any significant

commitments at the balance sheet date (2008: Nil).

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in (@)
these financial statements, during the year, the Group
paid rental expenses of approximately HK$999,000
(2008: approximately HK$999,000) to Kingmaker
Footwear Company Limited, a related company of
which Mr. Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey, Madam Huang
Hsiu-duan, Helen and Mr. Lee Kung, Bobby, directors
and shareholders of the Company, and approximately
HK$6,000 (2008: approximately HK$6,000) to Mr.
Chen Ming-hsiung, Mickey. The rental expenses were
determined with reference to the market conditions
existing at the time when the respective rental
agreements were entered into.

Compensation of key management personnel of the (b)
Group:

Short term employee benefits 45 2i{& 8 & 7
Post-employment benefits & 14 #& 7
Equity-settled share option expense MAME#S A5 E 2 BERSAERT Sz

Total compensation paid to key management personnel
XM EERERE A BNBRME ST

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included
in note 8 to the financial statements.
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264,185 297,024

REER  ARRWEFMEMER
AE(ZEENF  8) -

PRt EH B REMBAAAFRZR
S AEERFRN G [ A A
SEHERMGAERARINHEHESE
FA #9999,000 L (ZZE TN F : £
999,000/ 7T) * MARAIH TEEHR
RRBRGIE L E - BEF M T REFH
FENMTBZARESHRRE - kX
1<F BR B 58 A 496,0008 7T (T T\
F : #96,000%87T) - ZEHEERTY
2EITVERAERRER 2 TR
EE -

AEBAREEASHRMY

8,535 8,636
13 12
211 797
8,759 9,445

ERESTME 2 HMF BN MR
RHTFES ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial FZHENEeMTARNGEERAZRREERNT !
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2009 —EBENEF

Financial assets BIEEE

Available-for-sale investments A] it HH &E1& & - - 880 880
Accounts and bills receivable fE4ERE M 25 - 84,388 - 84,388

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

SPABMNRE ke REMERRE MK EE - 5,884 - 5,884
Derivative financial instruments $74 £ & T A 6,080 - - 6,080
Cash and cash equivalents 54 & ERHFELIER - 412,167 - 412,167

6,080 502,439 880 509,399
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHENeRTEAERNEEAZEREERT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (&) -
(continued):
2009 ZEENF
Financial liabilities BEEE
Accounts and bills payable B BRTE & Z & - 111,051 111,051
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities

and other payables 5T AJBiT B ER EMENRE 2 MISaE - 31,441 31,441
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ &g T A 3,984 - 3,984

3,984 142,492 146,476
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZEHEIEeMIANEERB ZREBENAT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (%) -

(continued):

2008 —EENF

Financial assets BKEE

Available-for-sale investments A it &% & = = 1,886 1,886
Accounts and bills receivable EUBEIE Kk Z 1% - 166,912 = 166,912

Financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables

STATENFIE - e REMEKRE  BEE - 9,448 - 9,448
Derivative financial instruments $T4£ & & T A 15,405 - - 15,405
Structured deposit &7 - 11,700 - 11,700
Cash and cash equivalents 34 & ERIE£IEH = 281,177 = 281,177

15,405 469,237 1,886 486,528
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHENeRTEAERNEEAZEREERT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (&) -
(continued):
2008 —ET)N\F
Financial liabilities BkAaE
Accounts and bills payable fEffERTE & Zi& = 131,482 131,482
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities

and other payables st AJEET B R AMENRIEBEZ B EE = 37,671 37,671
Derivative financial instruments $74 &gt T A 13,628 = 13,628
Interest-bearing bank borrowings T 8 R{TEE = 1,121 1,121

13,628 170,274 183,902
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial ZHENeRTEARNGEEAZEREERT
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows (%) -
(continued):

Financial assets

MKEE
Due from subsidiaries &K & A 77K 1A 792,019 742,430
Cash and cash equivalents I & M ERIEEEE 17,030 16,667
809,049 759,097
Financial liabilities BMkaE
Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other payables
FTAEFEERAEMEMNREBZBBEE 1,066 2,170
Due to subsidiaries F& 1 Hi & A FIFIA 640,211 605,023
641,277 607,193
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The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise cash and time deposits. The main
purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group’s operations. The Group has various other
financial assets and liabilities such as accounts and bills
receivable and accounts and bills payable, which arise
directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, including
principally forward currency contracts. The purpose is
to manage the currency risks arising from the Group’s
operations. It is, and has been throughout the year under
review, the Group’s policy that no trading in financial
instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and agrees
policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

The Group has no material interest-bearing borrowings
and believes its exposure to cash flow interest rate risk is
minimal.

The Group’s monetary assets, liabilities and transactions
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi
or United States dollars. Given that the Hong Kong dollar
is pegged to the United States dollar, the Group does not
have a foreign currency hedging policy on it. However,
considering the appreciation of RMB, the Group has
entered into forward currency contracts to manage the
foreign currency risk arising from the Group’s operations.
Moreover, the majority of the Group’s operating assets
are located in the PRC and denominated in RMB. As the
Group’s net profit is reported in Hong Kong dollars, there
will be a translation gain/(loss) as a result of the RMB
appreciation/(depreciation).
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BEREH - FINEARARGCANREERE
BIEBREL ZINERR - REEDEFE
N AEEZBRRSTEEEMTAZE
B METRASE—BERER-

AEBZERTAMELNTZRABRANE
Rk SMNERR - FERRRRSHE SR
e EEGCEHARSEERERR 2K
R BRZBMEBWAT °

=

AEEYEEAGEMEE - WREEMER
ZBRE RN R B -

AEEZEREE BERRZFTENE
7T ARBEHEITAE - ERATRAITH
# - ANEEAE LU R A INELIRER - R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in the
RMB exchange rate, with all other variables held constant,
of the Group’s profit before tax (due to changes in the
fair value of monetary assets and liabilities and forward
currency contracts).

2009

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB i 7t 5 A R ¥ B &
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB i3 7t 3, A R ¥ FHE

2008

If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB fifii 7t 4, A R ¥ 87 B
If Hong Kong dollar strengthens against RMB it 7t 3 A R K FHE

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
customers. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and on an individual
basis. Each of the customers has been attached with a
trading limit and any excess to the limit must be approved
by the general manager of the operation unit. Under the
tight control of the credit term and detailed assessment to
the creditworthiness of individual customers, the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is maintained as minimal.

TRINEMBEMEZER TR 2 BN
T AEEZEHRADEN (BEBEERA
& RERERANZATEED) HEE
BARBEXRAEAEHNRZES 2B
o

7

5 1,641
(5) (1,641)
5 2,829
(5) (2,829)

AEBERAMEEREERIFZEFEST
X5 REBZHR BB EKTRE
TBS2EFHAREERERE - 1o -
JEUWBRIB g DAIF B A A K B o7 A MBS
R ZEFPHEEERTE  MBAMRELE
BB RSB EMNACIEIE - AR EN
B2 EERRRERHEEEFETHH
ZEEFE  ASEMAZZERRARER
FMEKTE o
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The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which comprise cash and cash equivalents, structured
deposit, available-for-sale financial assets, other receivables
and derivative instruments, arises from default of the
counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the
carrying amounts of these instruments. The Company is
also exposed to credit risk through the granting of financial
guarantees, further details of which are disclosed in note
29 to the financial statements.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure
to credit risk arising from accounts and bills receivable are
disclosed in note 20 to the financial statements.

None of the Group’s other receivables is either past due
or impaired. The financial assets are included in other
receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial assets
(e.g. accounts and bills receivable) and the projected cash
flows from operations.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Group maintains a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through maintaining sufficient cash
and available banking facilities. The directors have reviewed
the Group’s working capital and capital expenditure
requirements and determined that the Group has no
significant liquidity risk. The maturity profile of the Group’s
financial liabilities as at the balance sheet date, based on
the contractual undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Accounts and bills payable F&{IBRIE & 2%

Financial liabilities included in accrued liabilities and other payables
STAEEEREMENKREZMBEE

Derivative financial instruments $7T4£ & @ T A

Interest-bearing bank borrowings B RITEE

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes were
made in the objectives, policies or processes during the
years ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
total current assets divided by total current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to keep the current ratio above one.

AEBFBEFRARRERERRITEE
FREESRHEERERERZ g - =
EEHAKRBZEEES NERARAITR
VEEARELESARBDESRR - A%
BB AENEE BRBIFRIR S ONRIE
B2 BIHERTEHINET -

111,051 131,482
31,441 37,671
3,984 13,628

- 1,121
146,476 183,902

AEBEREAZ T EZRBRRREREEIA
SEEBELE LN URBRREZEXR
& REBRHEXS -

AEBERERERANESEELEANRER
HEELRE - BEJSIHEELARE K
SETREFHBEIN FTRRERZKRE - MR
REBARARBTHER REBEE_ZTTLEF
MZZZN\F=A=+—HLFE  BHA
B BERSIEFILEEE o

AEBERARBLE ORBEERERIAR
BRERR) EREELN - AKREZERRA
HEMENEL RAERE— AL o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Company’s financial instruments are short term in Apmlz e TEHRREME - Bt - &
nature and therefore their carrying values as at 31 March ER_ZEENF=_A=+—HZEAERLE
2009 approximate to their fair values. NEEHES °

The financial statements were approved and authorised for PBRRER_ZEZNFLA+=ZREES
issue by the board of directors on 13 July 2009. SR R o
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